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1 NOTICE OF 38TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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2 MESSAGE FROM CHAIRPERSON

66

| aminspired by the vast growth opportunities that lies ahead.
With 38 years of history behind us, we are excited about the
prospects for continued expansion and innovation.

Ladies and gentlemen, esteemed shareholders, and valued stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | want to
extend my heartfelt gratitude for your continued
investment and trust in our company. This past year
has been a challenging one, and we have achieved
notable accomplishments. Despite facing numerous
challenges, we have managed to navigate these
complexities by focusing on what we can control. Our
commitment to refreshing the lives of all Nepalese
remains at the forefront of our strategy.

Leading with purpose and responsibility

The Board has been proactive in representing the
interests of all stakeholders on diverse issues,
assisting the leadership team to make informed
decisions on strategic investments, stretching goals
and sustainability. | speak on behalf of the Board when
| express great optimism for the years ahead, knowing
we have built strong foundations through thoughtful
investment, an adaptable culture and sustainability
leadership.

Our new Board members

| am pleased to announce the addition of one
new member to our Board, Shalini Ratwatte. Her
extensive experience in the beverage and technology
sectors will be invaluable as we continue to steer our
company toward greater achievements. | look forward
to collaborating with them as we navigate the future
together.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

Dividend

The Board has proposed a cash dividend of NPR
50/- per share for this year. This decision reflects
our commitment to reinvesting in growth initiatives
and reinforcing our foundation for the future. We are
confident that this strategy will enhance long-term
value for our shareholders.

Looking ahead

As we look to the future, | am inspired by the vast
growth opportunities that lie ahead. With 38 years of
history behind us, we are excited about the prospects
for continued expansion and innovation.

Thank you to the Board for your guidance and to our
dedicated team for their hard work throughout the
year. We look forward to unlocking new opportunities
for our people, customers, partners, and the broader
community in the upcoming year.

/»«4\‘54* |
NN SINGH

Chairman
Date: 29th November 2024
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3 MESSAGE FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

66

As | reflect back on the challenging year, | am inspired by our ongoing
investment in technology, accelerated digital transformation, innovation,
strong partnerships, and a culture of learning and performance, which
together pave the way for a more sustainable future.

To our valued shareholders and invaluable internal and external stakeholders,

On behalf of Bottlers (Terai) Nepal Limited, | want to
thank each one of you for your unwavering support and
commitment to refresh Nepal and make a difference.

| would like to commend our team for their passion and
commitment to deliver results. Our team was able to
implement multiple cost-saving initiatives, improve pack
mix sales and efficiency, and continue strong market
execution to help us maintain gross profits. Fundamentally,
we aim to continue to drive impact, operating with a
growth mindset and a belief that we can create a better
shared future.

We have invested in many innovations and energy
efficiency projects this year, which is a sign of our
commitment to seeking new avenues of growth. We also
seek to revitalize our business for future success. With
the aim of overcoming the current economic scenario,
we have introduced a new pack size keeping in mind
changing consumer preference, improved our commercial
execution by increasing our ability to penetrate deeper
into rural markets, shifted towards more efficient fuels
to increase productivity, through strategic and timely
procurement and last but not least have invested heavily
in digital transformation to accelerate all growth levers.

In addition, we continue to follow best in class corporate
governance compliance practices to foster a culture of
transparency, accountability and trust amongst all of our
stakeholders. We also go beyond our plant to serve our
communities in times of need, and scale up programmes
like Saksham empower more than 1000 women retailers
annually, and continue to replenish water and build an
ecosystem to collect and recycle PET waste.

We hope our partners and networks across the country will
also continue to embrace our purpose to refresh Nepal,

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED
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be more energized to be collaborative, more resilient and
more agile, so we maintain our growth momentum as
Nepal seeks to graduate beyond LDC status.

As | reflect back on the challenging year, | am inspired by
our ongoing investment in technology, accelerated digital
transformation, innovation, strong partnerships, and a
culture of learning and performance, which together pave
the way for a more sustainable future.

We look forward to all that we can achieve in the coming
year, as we continue to strengthen relationships with our
partners and customers, and generate a better shared
value for all we serve. In recent years, we have built
strong momentum and great resilience to overcome the
challenges we face while growing the business the right
way. | am confident that we have all the ingredients in
place for continued growth and success. We will continue
to listen to our customers and consumers, understanding
market trends while investing in and deploying our
bespoke capabilities.

Thank you all for your continued support and commitment
to our vision, which also keeps motivating us to raise the
bar higher. | look forward to achieving greater heights
together a we open up moments that refresh us all in the
coming year.

o g¥
%L

Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan
Chief Executive Officer
Date: 29th November 2024

ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



4 OUR COMPANY

Company Profile

Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company” or “BNTL”) is a Public Limited Company, with
operations spanning over 38 years. The shares of the Company are listed with the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited
(NEPSE), and the majority of its shares are held by M/s Bottlers Nepal Limited (BNL).

Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited is engaged in the production, manufacture, sale, distribution and supply of soft drinks
being carbonated non-alcoholic beverages and packaged drinking water under the brand names - Coca-Cola®, Sprite®,
Fanta®, Coke-Zero® and Kinley®. The Company along with its holding Company, Bottlers Nepal Limited are the only
authorized bottlers and suppliers of “The Coca-Cola Company” (“TCCC”), in Nepal.

Forover 38 years, Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited and its holding Company have built success on a profound understanding
of demand of the consumers. That success is based on a continuous, compelling strategy that leads to sustainable
value creation. It is also based on ability to change and adapt. 2080/81 was no exception. High standards of Corporate
Governance, strong technical credentials, prudent risk management approach, a culture of dedication and a strong
distribution network have been the key driving forces of the Company. The Company is considered as one of the most
prestigious multinational companies in Nepal.

We believe that the success of the Company depends on our ability to connect with consumers by providing them with a
wide variety of beverage options to meet their desires, needs and lifestyles. Our success further depends on the ability
of our people to execute effectively, every day.

Our objective is to use our Company’s assets, our brands, financial strength, unrivaled distribution system, global
reach, and the talent and strong commitment of our management and associates to become more competitive and to
accelerate growth in a manner that creates value for our shareowners.
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Vision

To make every
Nepali’s first choice of
refreshment available
within easy reach.

Mission

To build a community
driven, customer
focused, profitable,
sustainable, and socially
responsible business in
Nepal.

Our Strategy to Lead
the Growth

As a market leader and one of the oldest and largest FMCG
companies in the country, we are driven by a mindset of
leading growth.

As part of our overarching strategy, we proactively monitor
risks and opportunities, ensuring that our business adapts
to both internal and external changes.

We are a people-first company. We believe in developing
our employees as valued assets by investing in capability
development and fostering open, upward and downward
conversations, with a specialized focus on each individual's
development plan.

We implement world-class standards in our quality and
processes, driving our business forward by continually
cultivating a culture of Quality, Safety, and Environment
across the organization.

We are always exploring ways to improve efficiency and
productivity to enhance the triple bottom line—taking into
account the environment, society, and governance.

Welead by example, establishing best-in-class manufacturing
processes alongside cost-effective distribution models that
allow us to reach remote areas of the country and achieve
the highest penetration rates.

We have accelerated and invested in our digital
transformation to leverage data, enabling real-time,
informed business decisions with insights from our most
valued business partners: distributors and retailers.

At the heart of everything we do is our commitment to
community and sustainability, ensuring that we continue to
make a positive difference in the country and give back to the
nation we have served for over 38 years.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 9
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Core Values

Ifitis to be, it's
up to me

Working together
to support and
inspire each
other to win

Be Authentic —\

Integrity Teamwork

Decisions

\ ! /
are made at @E'
the lowest \L Ny

appropriate level

Committed
in heart

/_ and mind

Passion for

Empowerment winning

A/
00

i

Leadership

Commitment to
local stakeholders
by consistent
engagement and
environmental
practices

The courage to
shape a better J

future

Ethical Principles

We have a long-standing commitment of doing business with integrity which, means
avoiding corruption in any forms, including bribery and complying with the anti-bribery
corruption laws.

The Code of Business Conduct and Anti- Bribery Policy provides us a guidance on how
to conduct business in a fair, ethical and legal manner. All associates of the company are
bound to follow the precepts of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct, which includes
anti-corruption expectation for all employees.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI)LIMITED « 10 © ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81
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Board of Directors

Corporate Nominee
Director

Chairman Since: 10th May
2023

Director Since: 1987

Nationality: Nepali

Qualifications and Experience:

Mr. Singh holds the degree of Master of Arts in Political
Science from India. He has total experience of over 50
years on various field. He has been associated with the
Company for more than 50 years. He is also a Chairman
of Bottlers Nepal Limited, its parent company.

Corporate Nominee
Director

Director Since: 10th May
2023

Nationality: Czech Republic

Qualifications and Experience:

Mr. Lukas holds a Master’s in Law, Doctor of Law, Post
Graduate Diploma in EU Competition Law, Master in
Business Administration. He has total experience of
over 21 years. He is also a Director of Bottlers Nepal
Limited, its parent company.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED
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Corporate Nominee
Director

Director Since: 18th
September 2024

Nationality: Sri-Lankan

Qualifications and Experience:

Ms. Ratwatte holds a LLB degree. She has total
experience of over 26 years. She is also a Director of
Bottlers Nepal Limited, its parent company.

Corporate Nominee
Director

Director Since: 23rd
November, 2016

Nationality: Indian

Qualifications and Experience:

Mr. Gunjan Dhawan holds MFC and has experience
over instead 22 years. He is also a Director of Bottlers
Nepal Limited, its parent company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



Corporate Nominee
Director

Director Since: 14th

September 2012
‘ ' Nationality: Nepali

Qualifications and Experience:

Mr. Silwal holds a Master’s in Business Administration

with a total experience of over 28 years in various
Companies. He is also a Director of Bottlers Nepal
Limited, its parent company.

Independent Director

Director Since: 13" December
2012

Nationality: Nepali

Qualifications and Experience:

Mr. Karki holds multiple academic degrees including
M.A. and LL.M with over 40 years of experience in
governmental jobs.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED
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Public Shareholder Director

Director Since: 11" January
2023

Nationality: Nepali

Qualifications and Experience:

Mr. Shrestha holds Masters in Management with over 17
years of experience in various companies.

ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



Management Structure

The overall company management is led by the Chief Executive Officer and the Country Leadership Team. The
name and designation of Management Team are as detailed as below:
I | |

From Left to Right:

Redwin A. Duay (Country Finance Director) Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan (Chief Executive Officer)

ke Yu Hang (Country Supply Chain Directar) Shyam Chand (Head of IT) I

Sneh Rajbhandari (Country PACS Director) Pratima Burma (Company Secretary/Legal) I I
Yunus Riadi (Country Commercial Director) Bishnu Bista (Country Human Resources Directar)

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 14 ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81
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5 BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are well-positioned for sustainable growth

We lead by example in
growing non-alcoholic
ready to drink category

The Company is a leader
in the growing and dynamic
Non-alcoholic Ready To Drink
(NARTD) category. It operates
through its bottling plant in
Bharatpur. Your Company
manages its business
responsibly, sustainably,
and with a passion to create
value for its customers,
shareholders, consumers, and
the communities we serve.

Lean manufacturing
footprint

Your Company has been
able to cater to the increased
market demand through
its existing manufacturing
plants  through efficient
manufacturing  operations.
Your Company believes
there is ample scope to
achieve further efficiencies,
particularly in  Nepalese
market to become a green
industry.

The strongest, broadest A sustainable business
portfolio of brands, )
anchored around an Your Company recognizes

that creating shared value
for shareholders, employees,
consumers, customers, and

exceptional partnership with
The Coca-Cola Company

The Company produces, sells, communities is critical to its
and distributes the world’s long-term success. Over the
most recognized beverage last decade, your Company
brands. Coca-Cola®, has integrated corporate
Sprite®, Fanta®, Coke- social  responsibility  and
Zero®, and Kinley® are some sustainability into all aspects of
of the world’s best-selling its business management with
nonalcoholic  ready-to-drink long-term investments that
beverages. The Company aim to build value over time.
has high growth opportunities More recently, your Company
across high-value occasions established a business
and categories. Our Sparkling resilience program that
portfolio has evolved with the enhances its approach to risk
proliferation of zero-sugar, management and contingency
single-serve packs and response programs.

broader innovation in flavors
which we have experimented
from time to time.

Capability to execute in the market

Building and maintaining successful partnerships with our customers is
critical to our success. By working with customers to satisfy consumer
needs and maximize demand for our products, our company helps grow
both its business and that of its customers. We achieve this by segmenting
the market and determining the most efficient and effective methods to
service each outlet.

Our company aims to generate joint value in every aspect of its business
with each of its customers. This ranges from logistics and delivery to
marketplace execution and sustainability programs. We continue to
build our team capabilities at all levels and, most importantly, we foster a
performance growth culture.

Additionally, we are accelerating digitization in commercial areas,
including distributor management systems, sales force automation, and
the development of our eB2B digital platforms.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 16 ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81
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Financial Analysis

Figures in NPR

Profit or Loss Items

For the Year

For the Year

For the Year

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars Ended 80-81 | Ended 79-80 | Ended 78-79 | Ended 77-78 | Ended 76-77
Revenue 8,771,297 424 | 9.320,034,090| 9.114,069,072| 6,270.256,335| 4,693,349 428
Gross Profit 2.170,522.176 | 2,360,286,631| 2,394.778.160| 1,864.674,535| 1,190,294.118

Earning before Interest,

Depreciation and Tax (EBIDT) 1,381,231,288| 1,635,763,620| 1,773,629,996| 1,365,388,299 844,053,817
Operating Profit 721,109,708 | 1,025,801,009| 1,167,527,511 792,809,322 291,242,664
Profit Before Tax 448,439,241 714,691,803 964,000,542 512,647,048 8,258,244
Profit After Tax 339,681,626| 638,831,360 625,749,361 423,723,323 5,629,707
Earning Per Share 281 528 517 350 5

Balance Sheet Items

Figures in NPR

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
2081 2080 2079 2078 2077
No. of Shares 1,210,000 1,210,000 1,210,000 1,210,000 1,210,000
Total Assets 10,096,512,669| 9,240,741,092| 8,328,696,678| 8,038,254,694| 8,323,076,209
Plant Property and Equipment 5,626,487,146| 5,712,615,371| 5,677,376,604| 5,807,203,942| 6,158,935,286
Current Assets 4,554,327,143| 3,520,288,592| 2,637,182,353| 2,200,232,788| 2,108,679,212
Current Liabilities 5,186,035,176| 4,567,845482| 3,675,511,873| 3,649,446,256| 3,891,593,039
Long Term Borrowings - - 560,407,009| 1,130,407,009| 1,700,407,009
Debt 2,589,715,495| 2,776,407,981| 1,842,554,968| 2,070,309,274| 2,245,573,508
Shareholder equity 4,176,905,896 | 3,908,305,550| 3,316,980,030| 2,691,827,069| 2,266,050,786
Capital Employed 4,910,477,493| 4,672,895,611| 4,653,184,805| 4,388,808,438| 4,431,483,170
Market Capitalization 15,730,000,000| 16,698,000,000 | 18,599,273,000 | 14,735,380,000| 7,502,000,000
Ratio Analysis
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
2081 2080 2079 2078 2077
Gross Profit Ratio 25% 25% 26% 30% 25%
EBIDT Ratio 15.7% 17.6% 19.5% 21.8% 18.0%
Operating Profit Ratio 8% 1% 13% 13% 6%
Profit Before Tax Ratio 5.1% 7.7% 10.6% 8.2% 0.2%
Current Ratio 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5
Debt Equity Ratio 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.8 1.0
Assets Turnover Ratio 0.9 1.0 1.1 0.8 0.6
Return on Equity 8.1% 16.3% 18.9% 15.7% 0.2%
Return on Total Assets 3.4% 6.9% 7.5% 5.3% 0.1%
Earning Per Share 281 528 517 350 5
ma;gt Value Per Share 13,000 13,800 15,371 12,178 6,200
Price Earning Ratio 46 26 30 35 1,333
Net Worth Per Share/Return
on Shareholders' Fund (NPR) 3,452 3,230 2,741 2,225 1.873
Return on Capital Employeed 15% 22% 25% 18% 7%

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED
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Marketing Campaigns

The Coca-Cola Company (TCCC) is committed to the Responsible Marketing of its brands.

In 2080-81 as well, we upheld our longstanding global Responsible Marketing Policy, which ensures that none
of our brand marketing is directed towards children under the age of 13 and in media where 30% or more of
the audience is composed of children. This policy extends across various media, including television, print,
websites, social media, movies, and SMS/email marketing. Beyond restricting media placement, we also avoid
creating marketing materials that are primarily designed to appeal to children under 13, regardless of the

platform.

Some of the marketing campaigns we had carried out during the FY 2080-81 are as per below:

AB A
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“GRAB A COKE Get a
chance to WIN A CAR”
Campaign
(1st September
October 2023)

The Company launched its most
spectacular promotional campaign:
GRAB A COKE, WIN A CAR from
1st September 2023 till 31st October
2023.This thrilling initiative was
designed to deliver unparalleled
moments of joy and excitement,
promising a whirlwind of fun and
irresistible rewards.

2023 - 31st

Through  this  campaign, the
consumers have the incredible
opportunity to win a grand prize
of a car, with weekly giveaways of
a bike for eight weeks, and a daily
distribution of 60 smartphones. This
campaign was also extended to
other variants of sparkling beverage,
Sprite and Fanta PET/RGB across
Nepal.
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“Drink N Win” Campaign
(14th March 2024-30th June 2024)

To celebrate the vibrant return of
summer, the Company launched the
exciting “Drink N Win” campaign,
offering instant rewards that
promise to elevate the season’s
enjoyment. This exciting promotion
invites consumers to enjoy a range
of exciting surprises by simply
checking under the crown of Coca-
Cola returnable glass bottles.

The concept is simple where
consumers need to see the prize
beneath the bottle cap and claim
their reward on the spot. With prize
amount ranging from NPR 5 to a
staggering NPR 1000, the campaign
ensures that every sip brings a
chance for instant gratification. This
campaign was available on 175 ml
and 250 ml RGB bottles.

175ml Uplift Campaign

The Company has launched an
extraordinary campaign for the 175
ml RGB bottle, titled "AfulaiJagau,”
which symbolizes our commitment
to uplifting everyday moments with
exceptional refreshment and joy.
This campaign transcends mere
product promotion; it is designed
to create profound and memorable
experiences that uplift and stimulate
our consumers, leaving them with
a lasting sense of happiness and
satisfaction.
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“250ml free- Promo”

The Company had launched a
promotional campaign offering a free
250ml pack with every purchase of
1.5 litre and 2.25 litre packs of Coca-
Cola, Sprite, and Fanta with the
theme ‘joy and togetherness’.This
promotion aims to elevate ordinary
moments into celebrations by pairing
them with Coca-Cola beverages.

NEW PACKSIZE LAUNCHED

The Company has launched new
2-liter pack. It is a strategic addition
to our product portfolio aimed at
enhancing the at-home dining
experience for our consumers.
This initiative, part of our 'Coke
and Meals' campaign, offers our
customers the opportunity to enjoy
their favorite beverage in a more
convenient and  family-friendly
size. Priced at NPR 250/-, this
new offering is perfectly positioned
to increase shareability and
strengthen our brand’s presence at
the dining table. We are confident
that this will not only delight our
consumers but also drive growth
and value for our shareholders.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 20

“Kathmandu is Cooking”
(15th March 2024)

Coca-Cola’s grand event
‘Kathmandu is Cooking’ returned for
its exciting Second Edition on March
15, 2024 at the Hyatt Hotel Ground
in Kathmandu.The “Is Cooking”
campaign is a global phenomenon
introduced by Coca-Colato celebrate
and encourage the passion for food
in each city across the globe. It is
an extension of Coca-Cola’s global
brand platform — Real Magic™ -
which invites everyone to celebrate

the real magic of togetherness.

The event not only set a Guinness
World Record for the “Largest Momo
Party” but also became an iconic
celebration of culture and culinary
delight. With over 500 enthusiastic

participants, the gathering was a
vibrantdisplay of energy and festivity,
each guest enjoying a delectable
pair of Momos accompanied by a
refreshing 250 ml bottle of Coke.

The event was further elevated
by performances from renowned
artist Papon and a roster of

exceptional local talents, ensuring
an unforgettable musical experience
that perfectly complemented the
culinary offerings. “Kathmandu is
Cooking” masterfully combined
the joy of music with the delight of
Momos tasting, with thepresenceof
more than 25 of the city’s premier
Momos vendors. This remarkable

fusion of entertainment, Momos,
and Coca-Cola created a grand
celebration that will be remembered
as a milestone in Kathmandu’s event
history.Kathmandu is Cooking' was
a waste-free event, demonstrating
Coca-Cola's strong commitment to
recycling.
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DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

Coke Buddy

This innovative

Coke
platform enables 24/7 ordering, real-
time purchase tracking, promotional
alerts, and seamless communication
with the company’s support team.

Buddy®

Since its launch in December 2023,
we have successfully onboarded
80% of our outlets within just
six months. These outlets have
actively placed orders through Coke
Buddy®, contributing to nearly 40%
of our total revenue being processed
via the apps. Additionally, we are
on the brink of integrating several
exciting features, including loyalty
programs, digital payment systems,
Al-driven customer targeting, high-
efficiency strategies for new outlets,
and gaming options.

RPA )
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Robotic Process
Automation Platform

The company is advancing its
automation efforts by implementing
a Robotic Process Automation (RPA)
platform to streamline recurring
tasks. This initiative is part of a
strategic effort to boost efficiency,
minimize errors, and allow human
employees to concentrate on more
strategic and value-driven activities.
Significant progress has been made
in adopting automation and robotics
across various areas of operations.
These technologies are now central
to our strategy, improving efficiency,
lowering operational costs,
and enhancing product quality.
Through the integration of cutting-
edge automation and robotics
solutions, we are revolutionizing
our operations, innovation, and
competitive edge in a fast-paced
market.

Cyber Security & Business Continuation Plan

The Company proudly secured
an “A” rating in IT BRF (Business
Resilience Framework) compliance,
highlighting its advanced
technological infrastructure and
readiness to address unforeseen
challenges. This  achievement
showcases the Company’s
commitment  to safeguarding
critical IT systems, ensuring data
integrity, and maintaining seamless
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CYBERATTACKS

CYBERSECURITY

Info

operations.
With  modern technology and
strong cybersecurity measures,

Digitized Supply Chain

Our company has made substantial
progress in enhancing our supply
chain through strategic investments
in digital technologies. Committed to
operational excellence and customer
satisfaction, we have successfully
introduced a Digitized Supply Chain
that utilizes advanced tools and
technologies. This transformation
has optimized our operations and
improved our ability to adapt to
market demands and disruptions.

The shift to a digitized supply
chain has yielded considerable

advantages, such as increased
efficiency, integrated quality
control, and greater resilience.

We are enthusiastic about future
developments and remain focused
on ongoing improvements through
digital innovation.

the company has strengthened its
digital systems to ensure safe and
reliable operations. The “A” rating
highlights the company’s efforts to
manage IT risks, build trust with
stakeholders, and support long-term
growth. This achievement shows
the company’s focus on using
technology to improve operations
and drive innovation.
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HUMAN CAPITAL

The Company is dedicated to attracting, developing, and retaining a talented workforce, ensuring that every team
member can contribute to our collective success. We are committed to cultivating a skilled workforce equipped
with the knowledge, competencies, and growth mindset needed to navigate emerging business challenges and
maintain a competitive edge. We recognize that teamwork is central to our achievements, and we owe our success
to employees who align their personal growth with the Company's future and are committed to thriving together.

We continuously evaluate opportunities to enhance our efforts in talent acquisition, retention, and development.
We believe in fostering a learning environment that encourages integrated thinking, personal growth, and
team collaboration. Employees are also empowered to identify areas where they need training to boost their
performance.

We strive to support the physical and mental well-being of our employees at all levels. We aim to keep our
employees engaged and motivated through regular feedback sessions, employee recognition programs,
and career development opportunities. Our Company provides a range of training programs and exposure
opportunities for employees across various departments and levels.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

The company follows a policy of recruiting candidates based on manpower needs identified
through a focused and well-structured Human Resource Plan. As an Equal Employment
Opportunity provider, we ensure that all candidates are assessed impartially, using objective
criteria, without regard to race, gender, ethnicity, religion, language, or civil status. Our
vision is to attract, develop, and retain a talented team, fostering a workplace where every
member can thrive and lead collectively.

The programs and initiatives we implement—covering employment practices, compensation and benefits, talent
management, diversity and inclusion, and team member relations—are crucial in upholding this commitment,
particularly in today’s challenging economic climate.

We pride ourselves on our Company’s warm and equitable multicultural environment, where each team member
is valued for their abilities and respected for who they are. We are dedicated to creating a positive and focused
work atmosphere that celebrates teamwork and encourages innovation.

Our goal is to provide a workplace where all employees can thrive and grow—a place where they feel included,
safe, and empowered to make meaningful contributions to the Company.

Diversity Equity & Inclusion Representation

Inclusivity is at the heart of everything we do. We recognize that fostering a diverse, equitable,

R x @ and inclusive workplace—one that mirrors the diversity of the markets we serve—is not just a

goal but a strategic priority essential for our ongoing growth and success. Our commitment is
to ensure equal opportunities for all employees, cultivate a more inclusive environment, and
build a culture where every individual can thrive.

We value the unique backgrounds and perspectives of our team members, promoting authenticity, curiosity, and
accountability. We strive to create an environment conducive to continuous learning, challenge, and growth.

Our diversity, equity, and inclusion strategy are focused on three key long-term goals:

Building a workforce Fostering an inclusive Pr°”,”°?'”9 eqmty and access
within our business, the

RR that reflects the diverse o culture where all "
i | thri communities we touch, and
communities we serve. employees can thrive. T [raser A pEEs

1 2 3
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FREEDOM OF ASSOCIATION

Jo\!
20

Our Company does not curtail the freedom of association of employees. Management is
committed for discussions and negotiations with the employees who are unionized. Further,
an open-door policy is encouraged. There are three unions in function in the Group which
represents the interests of 565 employees.

hild Labor
o

)

As part of our ongoing commitment, our Company strongly advocates for and upholds decent
work practices and human rights. We strictly prohibit child labor and do not employ anyone
under the age of 16 in our workplaces. This commitment is deeply embedded in our policies
and procedures across the Group. We ensure that there is no direct risk of child labor in any
of our operations.

WORKPLACE RIGHTS POLICY

§
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Our Company's Workplace Rights Policy is designed to provide all stakeholders with clear
guidelines and internally accepted standards for how we treat our employees. We regularly
audit adherence to these workplace policies to ensure compliance. The Workplace Rights
Policy is informed by both the country's Labor Act and international human rights standards.
At our Company, we are committed to fostering an inclusive workplace where all community
members have equal opportunities for employment and development, regardless of race,
gender, religion, or disability.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT
AT WORKPLACE POLICY

Our Company is committed to providing a work environment where every employee is treated
with dignity and respect and receives equitable treatment. We are also dedicated to fostering
a workplace that supports the professional growth of our employees and promotes equal
opportunities for all. We have a zero-tolerance policy towards any form of sexual harassment
and are fully committed to taking all necessary measures to protect our employees from any
form of harassment.

To reinforce this commitment, we implemented our Sexual Harassment at Workplace Policy on December 1,
2017, in accordance with the provisions of The Sexual Harassment at Workplace Prevention Act, 2015 (2071).
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TALENT AND DEVELOPMENT

Our ongoing commitment to nurturing talent and fostering professional growth has been
@ instrumental in the success of both our employees and the organization.

O Performance Management: We have continued to enhance our performance management
h processes by emphasizing regular feedback and development discussions. This approach
fosters a culture of continuous improvement.

Leadership Development: We have actively engaged in various leadership development programs to identify
and nurture future leaders within the organization. By investing in growth and leadership behavior, we ensure the
long-term success of our company.

Learning and Development: Our HR team has collaborated with different departments to identify skill gaps and
deliver targeted training programs. Additionally, we have utilized e-learning platforms to make learning resources
more accessible, further supporting the professional growth of our employees.

EMPLOYER BRANDING

At Bottlers, we place significant emphasis on developing a robust employer branding strategy
to engage with potential employees and effectively convey our company's leadership,
core values, and unique culture. Our unwavering commitment to establishing a strong
brand presence not only facilitates enhanced talent acquisition but also nurtures enduring
relationships with our workforce.

In the previous year, we introduced our new Talent Philosophy and Employee Value Proposition, aptly named
"Thrive." This initiative was designed to cater to the well-being and growth of our people. Thrive is built upon
four pivotal pillars: Growth, Well-being, Belongingness, and Impact. These pillars encapsulate our dedication
to fostering both personal and professional development, cultivating a sense of belonging and unity within our
organization, and actively making a meaningful impact in the world. Thrive signifies our pledge to transcend mere
aspiration, translating it into tangible and sustainable growth for our employees and the company.

We successfully elevated this Talent Philosophy and Employee Value Proposition to new heights in FY 2080/81.

EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING

At Bottlers, we recognize that employee well-being is integral to our culture and success.
This year we launched several initiatives aimed at promoting physical, mental and social

well-being.
PHYSICAL WELL-BEING MENTAL WELL-BEING SOCIAL WELL-BEING
%O *
N LY
Health and Wellness Introduced a platform called Fostering a culture of recognition
Programs to promote “Happy Minds,” available to all and appreciation through our
physical health, such as employees for mental health initiative, “Celebrating You.”
fitness, health screenings, support which provides access Emphaszmg the importance of a
and wellness challenges. to counseling services and positive workplace culture where

employees feel supported by their
peers and managers and open-
door policies.

mindfulness programs as part
of our well-being initiatives.
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Quality, Health and Safety

The company operates within a world-class supply chain
organization where Quality, Food Safety, Occupational
Health & Safety, and Environmental Management are of
paramount importance.

As part of the ISO Management System, the company has
successfully obtained certification to the latest revision
of all four system standards: ISO 9001:2015 Quality
Management System, ISO 14001:2015 Environmental
Management System, FSSC 22000 Version 6.0 Food
Safety System Certification, and [ISO 45001:2018
Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems.

We believe in our “Safety First” culture in all our routine
tasks. People’s safety is one of the top priorities in
this system’s operation. In our ongoing efforts to
enhance Occupational Health and Safety, the company
periodically conducts pre-work risk assessments,
orientations, on-the-job training, and both in-house and

external training for relevant staff and contractors. It also
follows a scientific approach in its safety management
system, including HIRA (Hazard Identification and
Risk Assessment), safety orientation, and ongoing
supervision. Additionally, the company has been
emphasizing life-saving rules to ensure the safety of all

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

employees and contractors. The company provides all
relevant personal protective equipment based on the
nature of the job to all its associates.

In line with ongoing initiatives to strengthen your
safety programs and improve the safety culture across

operations, The company has implemented Behavior-

BOTTLERS NEPAL LIMITED
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
CERTIFICATE
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Based Safety (BBS) with the objective of increasing
employee participation at all levels in the safety process
and providing feedback on behaviors that affect safety.
BBS goes beyond compliance by engaging and inspiring
associates at all levels to personally take responsibility in
daily safety efforts.

With the objective of achieving 'ZERO ACCIDENTS,'
The company has focused on preventing hand and foot
injuries through teamwork and the active participation of
shop floor employees. The company has also adopted
practices such as 'Measuring Total Safety Index,'
"Toolbox Talk,' 'Gemba Walk," 'Life-Saving Rules,' and
'Call to Action Communication," all of which contribute to
an improved safety culture in the plant.

Environment

The company believes that profitable growth and
sustainability go hand in hand, which is why 'sustainability-
minded' innovations are integrated into every aspect
of our operations. In our manufacturing facilities, we
are improving the efficiency of natural resource usage,
promoting green building, and increasing the use of
alternative energy.

Water risk management, improving water use efficiency,
wastewatertreatment, and returning waterto communities
and nature through our replenishment programs are all
embedded in our regular activities. The company’s facility
has an effluent treatment plant that ensures wastewater
generated at our unit is treated prior to discharge into
the municipal drain, complying with both our internal and
Government of Nepal requirements. This treated water
is also effectively reused for general cleaning purposes
within the plant premises. The company is the only plant
in the entire industrial district with an effluent treatment
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facility, and it is well recognized by the Government and
the Industrial Management Board.

Supporting The Coca-Cola Company’s Decarbonization
agenda, the company has continuously worked towards
making all our packaging more sustainable. From light-
weighting and using recyclable materials to manufacturing
refillable glass bottles, The company strives to reuse and
recycle packaging materials to minimize environmental
impacts. The company has a robust solid waste
management system in place, focusing on managing
solid waste by first avoiding its generation through
resource optimization and technological transformation.
All generated waste is further categorized as commercial
and non-commercial waste. Commercial waste is sent
for recycling, while non-commercial waste is disposed
of and managed through government-approved waste
management vendors.

Energy efficiency and usage are integral parts of our
manufacturing process, where we set ambitious targets
for our energy requirements at the plant through green
or renewable energy. The company has been achieving
this by investing in new technologies and through other
initiatives such as improving heating systems, repairing
leakages, and more.

By employing the Science-Based Target Tool, The
company has meticulously examined processes,
requirements, strategic planning, and key interventions
with the aim of enabling your system to accelerate the
sustainability journey and achieve 2030 goals through a
scientific approach—a commitment to work towards the
Decarbonization agenda, carbon reduction, and water
conservation by focusing on 'What we should do' for a
sustainable environment.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED
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6 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pramod Kumar Karki
Independent Director

“ As an Independent Director, | am proud to be part of a governance

framework that prioritizes integrity, transparency, and accountability.
Throughout the year, the Board has worked diligently to ensure that our
decisions are aligned with the long-term interests of our shareholders
and stakeholders. We remain committed to fostering a culture of ethical
leadership, robust risk management, and continuous improvement,
ensuring that we meet the highest standards of corporate governance
and uphold the trust placed in us by the public and investors alike.”

The company believes that sound
corporate governance practices
are essential to create sustainable
value and to safeguard the interest
of stakeholders. Our commitment
to best practices in Corporate
Governance plays a key role in
managing our risks and opportunities
and maintaining the trust of our
stakeholders. Over the years, the
company has strengthened the
governance structure, practices and
processes to meet.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is appointed
by Shareholders to oversee the
interest in the long-term health and
overall success of the business and
its financial strength. The Board of the
Company has ultimate responsibility
for direction, performance, and long-

Board Independence

term success of our business as a
whole. The Board appoints the Chief
Executive Officer, who is charged
by the Board with conducting the
business of the Company. The
Management Committee of the
Company is headed by Chief
Executive Officer and has function
heads as its members, which looks
after the management of the day-to-
day affairs of the Company.

format of Securities Board of Nepal
(SEBON) and submitted to SEBON.

Composition

The Board of Directors comprises
several directors as the Board
deems it appropriate to function
efficiently as a body, subject to the
Company’s Article of Association.
The Board is comprised of Directors
and Independent Directors
(including  representation  from
public shareholders) and the Board
considers this to be the appropriate
structure. During the year, the Board

Compliance with Good
Governance Directives for Public
Listed Companies 2074

As required under the Directives, the
Board has designated Ms. Pratima
Burma, who is also a Company
Secretary, as Compliance Officer. The
company has prepared the Annual
Corporate Governance Report for
FY 2080-81 as per the prescribed

continued with its strength of 7
(seven) Members, who essentially
have a supervisory role and, 1 (one)
Managing Director. The details of
each member of the Board along
with date of joining the Board are
provided herein the table below.

[ Name | Date of Joining the Board No. of Shares held in the Company

Non-Executive Chairman
Mr. Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lukas Zapletal

Mr. Shalini Ratwatte

Mr. Gunjan Dhawan

Mr.  Surendra  Silwal
Director: Mr. Amar Baidya)

(Alternate

Mr. Ajay Kumar Shrestha

Independent Director
Mr. Pramod Kumar Karki

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

2,000 unit shares individually owned and 1,000
unit shares owned by his relatives/Representing

May 10, 2023 .
ay Bottlers Nepal Limited.

May 10, 2023 Representing Bottlers Nepal Limited.

September 18, 2024
November 23, 2016

Representing Bottlers Nepal Limited.
Representing Bottlers Nepal Limited.

June 27, 2017 Representing Bottlers Nepal Limited.

1,515 unit shares individually owned and 4,818
unit shares owned by body corporate/Representing
Public Shareholders

January 11, 2023

December 13, 2012
(Re-appointed on January 12, 2022)
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Board Meeting:

The Board meets at regular intervals
to discuss and decide on various
transactions of the company. The
notice of the Board Meeting is given
well in advance to all the Directors.
The agenda and other relevant
documents were circulated ten
(10) days prior to the date of the
meeting to ensure adequate and
active discussion on the agenda(s)
before arriving at the decisions.
During the year under review, a total
of six (6) meetings of the Members
of the Board were convened. The
maximum interval between any

Board Independence

100%

Business:

Independent Audit Committee

100%

Distributed NPR 7.26 crore as Dividend to shareholders during 2079/80.

Director Attributes and Skills
The Right Attributes to Oversee the

two meetings was well within the
maximum allowed gap of three
months.

Board Evaluation

In terms of the requirement of Good
Governance Directives for Public
Listed Company, 2074, annual
performance evaluation of the Board
is undertaken where the Board
assesses its own performance in
order to improve the effectiveness of
Board and Committees. The Board
Evaluation cycle was completed
by the Company internally which
included the Evaluation of the Board

— BUILDING THE RIGHT BOARD FOR THE BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED —

Committees led by Independent Director

The Right Skills to Guide our Business Strategy and
Constructively Challenge Management

. High integrity

An appreciation of multiple cultures

A commitment to sustainability and
to dealing responsibility with social
issues.

Innovating thinking
A proven record of success

Knowledge of corporate governance
requirements and practices

i)

&)
w

High Level of Strategic
and Financial
Experience

Broad International
Exposure/Emerging
Market Experience

Risk
Oversight/Management
Expertise

as a whole and Self-evaluation of
the Directors. The exercise was led
by the Chairman. The Evaluation
process focused on various aspects
of the functioning of the Board and

Committees such as improving
Board effectiveness, performance
of Board Committees, Board

knowledge session etc. Separate
exercise was carried out to evaluate
the self-performance of individual
Directors on parameters such as
contribution, knowledge, and skills
etc. Annual Directors’ Refresher
Training was also conducted on July
9, 2024.

1out3

Government or
Geopolitical Expertise

@

Relevant Senior

Leadership
/Chief Executive Officer

Experience

Extensive Knowledge or
the Company’s Business
and/or Industry

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company. The Board has three Committees
evaluating every activity of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

—h

—
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LUKAS ZAPLETAL
Chair

9

f "

GUNJAN DHAWAN

To recommend the names of potential auditors for
the appointment of the auditor of the Company,
fix the remuneration and terms and conditions of
appointment of the auditor and present the same in
the general meeting for the ratification thereof.

To review and supervise as to whether the auditor of
the Company has observed such conduct, standards
and directives determined by the competent body
pursuant to the prevailing law as required to be
observed in the course of doing auditing work.

Based on the conduct, standard and directives
determined by the competent body pursuant to the
prevailing law, to formulate the polices required
to be observed by the Company in respect of the
appointment and selection of the auditor.

To prepare the accounts related policy of the
Company and enforce, or cause to be enforced, the
same.

Where any regulator body has provided for the long-
term audit report to be set out in the audit report of
the Company, to comply with the terms required to
prepare such report.

To perform such other terms as prescribed by
the Board of Directors in respect of the accounts,
financial management and audit of the Company.

To ensure that the accounts book, audit report,
balance sheet or financial statement of accounts are

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

SURENDRA SILWAL

29

Meeting held in 2080-81: 3
Independence: 3 out of 3
Primary Responsibilities:

a. To review the accounts and financial
statements of the Company and ascertain
the truth of the facts mentioned in such
statements.

b. To review the internal financial control
system and the risk management system
of the Company.

c. To supervise and review the internal

auditing activity of the Company.

maintained according to prevailing laws and as per
the directive issued by the governing authority or as
per the rules and regulation of the institution.

To review the financial details of the Company and
thereafter, to ensure that the evidence mentioned in
the details are true and fact.

To ensure that the work of internal auditing is
effective and is executed and accomplished in an
independent way.

To monitor and ensure that the accounts, budget,
internal control systems are properly and regularly
maintained.

To ensure that the accounts book, documents of
internal audit record system or electronic record of
auditing are kept in proper way.

To provide opinion on the subject instructed by
Board of Directors

To ensure that the Company has followed the
direction given by the governing authority or not.

To inspect, monitor and ensure the purchasing
system of the Company are appropriate and
economical.

To perform such or any other additional duties
and responsibilities that may be ancillary and
have financial implication on the Company to the
aforementioned duties.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Meeting held in 2080-81: 2
Independence: 3 out of 3
Primary Responsibilities:

+ To oversee the implementation of Risk

PRAMOD KUMAR KARKI management Systems and Framework;
Chair + Toassess risk and procedures to minimize
the same;

* To frame, implementing and monitoring
the risk management plan for the
Company

LUKAS ZAPLETAL GUNJAN DHAWAN

PROPERTY AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE

Meeting held in 2080-81: 1
Independence: 3 out of 3
Primary Responsibilities:

» To review the ownership documents of the

property of the Company.
LUKAS ZAPLETAL

. » To conduct due diligence of whether those
Chair

properties are duly registered and the statutory
== dues in the form of duties and taxes has been
paid to the concerned authorities.

» To ensure that the properties of the company
are adequately insured.

To review whether there is any pending

GUNJAN DHAWAN SURENDRA SILWAL e
litigation on the property of the company.

« Toreview contingent liabilities of the Company.

Details of Remuneration to the Non-Executive Director:

Sitting Fee (in NPR)

Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh 1,80,000

Ajay Kumar Shrestha 1,80,000

Pramod Kumar Karki 2,40,000
Note:

«  Except Independent Director, Chairperson and Director representing Public Shareholder, all other Directors have
waived their sitting fees.

* The sitting fees for serving on Committee and Board Meeting is NPR 30,000 (Thirty Thousand) per sitting which is
approved by the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on January 12, 2023.
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Attendance of Director at Board and Committee Meetings

The attendance of the Board and Committee Members are as per below:

Board Members Designation

Mr. Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh Chairperson

Mr. Lukas Zapletal Director

Ms. Sunaina Vijay Kumar Dhanuka Director

Mr. Gunjan Dhawan Director

Mr. Surendra Silwal Director

Mr. Ajay Kumar Shrestha Director
representing
Public
Shareholders

Mr. Pramod Kumar Karki Independent
Director

Audit Risk Property
Board . s
Meetin Committee Management & Liability
9 Meeting Committee Committee
6 (out of 6) N/A N/A N/A
6 (outof 6) 3 (out of 3) 2 (out of 2) 1 (out of 1)
3 (out of 6) N/A N/A 1 (out of 1)
6 (outof 6) 3 (out of 3) 2 (out of 2) 1 (out of 1)
3 (outof 6) 1 (out of 3) N/A N/A
6 (out of 6) N/A N/A N/A
6 (out of 6) N/A 2 (out of 2) N/A

Note: Mr. Amar Baidya, Alternate Director of Mr. Surendra Silwal had attended one meeting.

Internal Controls

The Company has a robust system for Internal Control
and Risk Assessment. The Audit Committee of The
company has been instrumental in ensuring that the
Company has all adequate systems of financial control
in place. The Audit Committee periodically conducts
review of the effectiveness of Internal Control Systems
and oversees the design of our Internal Control Systems
along with the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Function
throughout the year. The Audit Committee of The
company reviews the Internal Audit reports containing
details of the audit coverage, compliance to the laws,
regulations, established policies and procedures.

The Group has adopted a “Chart of Authority (COA)”
defining financial and other authorization limits and
setting-up procedures for approving capital and
investment expenditures. The Group has a strong
internal control framework which is supported by risk &
control matrix, Standard Operating Procedures, Policies,
Guidelines, Governance Capsules and Self-Assessment
exercised. These internal control frameworks are
routinely tested by Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors,
Lawyers as well as Internal Assurance Team. Significant
audit observations and follow-up actions thereon are
reported to the Management and Board of Directors.

Enterprise Risk Management

The Company has implemented the Enterprise Risk
Management System (ERM) as per prescribed
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guidelines from The Coca-Cola Company and is
managing risks through the process of thorough risks
identification along with identify proper risk owner plus
supporting owner, detailed assessment considering
severity of risks and provide ranking based on likelihood
and consequences of identified risks, mitigation through
right approach and periodic monitoring the risks
associated with the activities being carried out by the
different business units across the Company and also
assesses the hygiene/health of actions/approach to
mitigate the risks. Risk Tracker has been maintained
with risk categories based on risk weightage, updated
if needful with detailed action taken/considered and
situation changes based on work done and monitored on
a periodic basis and flag out/report to Committee. A Risk
Management Committee has been formed at Board level
for monitoring the risk management activities flagged out
for effective risk management in the Company.

The assets of the Company are adequately insured
against Operation Risk (covering Fire and allied perils,
Company Assets, Transit, Money, Fidelity, Burglary etc.)
and Revenue Risk (covering Loss of Profit, 3rd party
liability through Combined General Liability Policy and
also covers Directors & Officers Liability).

The repair and maintenance work of power plants and
distribution lines have been carried out timely as per
the maintenance schedule. Good relations have been
maintained with the local people in the project vicinity.
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COMPANY POLICIES
Code of Business Conduct

The company conducts its business with integrity and
high standards of ethical behavior, and in compliance
with the laws and regulations that govern its business.
The company has well established Code of Business
Conduct that expects all employees to act transparently
and with integrity. Mandatory training, availability of

THE COCA-COLA COMPANY
beverages for life

I’\\

INTEGRITY

the essential ingredient

Ethics Line to report issues and robust mechanism
to investigate and take appropriate action ensures
that values of Code of Business Conduct are put into
practice. The company has Code of Business Conduct
Training Program designed and trainings are imparted
to the employees in person and web-based training
in compliance with the principles laid down under The
Prevention of Corruption Act, 2059 (2002 AD), The
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act(FCPA), 1977, a US
Federal Law and UK Bribery Act, 2010.

Global Anti-Bribery Policy

Our Global Anti-Bribery Policy establishes the limitations
we must adhere to when interacting with officials of
various governments around the world. The policy
provides information about anti-bribery laws to avoid

Awards & Recognition

The Company was awarded Bronze
for the Best Presented Annual Report
(BPA) 2023 under the Manufacturing
Sector category in an event organized
by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).The
award was presented to the Company
for its outstanding presentation,
detailed disclosure, and transparency
of information presented in the annual
accounts for the fiscal year 2079/80.

=
—
-
g
i
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inadvertent violations. Our Code of Business Conduct for
Suppliers also includes similar expectations regarding
bribery to business partners. The Company conducts
periodic anti-bribery assessments and audits of our
business to raise overall awareness, detect potential
misconduct and monitor compliance with anti-corruption
laws and policy.

The company aims to lead by example and to learn from
experience. The company sets high standards for its
people at all levels and strives to consistently meet them.
The company’s sound business principles and practices
foster its strong, innovative and collaborative culture,
which is committed to ethical behavior, accountability
and transparency.

The company is guided by its established standards of
corporate governance and ethics. The company reviews
its systems to ensure to achieve international best
practices in terms of transparency and accountability.

Ethics Codes and Principles for Non-

Employee Directors and Suppliers

Non-employee directors are bound by a Code of Business
Conduct for Non-Employee Directors that reflects the
same principles and values as our employee Code but
focuses on matters of most relevance to non-employee
directors. Our Supplier Code of Business Conduct and
Supplier Guiding Principles set baseline expectations for
how our suppliers conduct their business.

Document Retention Policy

The company has a Document Retention Policy which
lays ground rules for how the company will manage
documents and records from creation to destruction,
including both physical and digital records. The said
policy also provides a guideline regarding the retention
period and custody of various records and documents
that need to be stored.
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MAKINGADIFFERENCE KEEPING SUSTAINABILITY
AT THE HEART OF OUR ENDEAVOURS

We place sustainability at the heart of all our endeavors to lead by example as a responsible corporate, striving
to make a difference and a create a better future for each and every aspect of our value chain. We offer beverage
consumption choices with a variety of packaging sizes and aim to localize procurement of raw materials to craft
a sustainable ecosystem, mitigating the impact of our business on the environment. This means, every decision
we make, takes into the consideration the planet, our communities, our people, our consumers and our business
partners and seek to create a positive impact for the country we reside in.

We have been committed to Nepal for over 38 years, and we strive to make a difference ensuring that our business
remains customer and community driven, but also profitable and socially responsible. The sustainability landscape
is evolving and Nepal has also committed to a net-zero commitment by 2045. We take our decarbonization
agenda seriously, and also have contextualized our global sustainability agenda to the needs of the country- and
bring together the private sector, government and non-profit organizations together to help the Government of
Nepal move closer to attaining the Sustainable Development Goals.

LEADING BY EXAMPLE AS A RESPONSIBLE CORPORATE

WOMEN’S ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

There is overwhelming evidence that achieving equality
and empowerment for women has broad ripple effects
that are good for society. At Coca-Cola as well, we
believe in creating value for the large network of women
who are part of our value chain, and since 2012, we
have been running programs to proactively empower
our women retailers through programs like STAR
(Shopkeeper Training & Retailers) and Saksham. In this
year, we engaged and trained more than 1026 women fostering innovation amongst women entrepreneurs. We
also continued with the second cohort of the Accelerator
program, with 13 participants, and top 3 winning projects
getting NPR 100,000 each to scale their business.

GIVING BACKWATER TO THE COMMUNITIES
WE SERVE

As water is a key ingredient in our beverages, we have
a strong commitment to give back water for every drop
used in our business. As a part of our water stewardship

retailers across our value chain, and went beyond our efforts in Nepal, we continue to give back almost 2
value chain through the Accelerator training program. drops of water for every drop of water we use, and also
Saksham was designed in 2022 as a crucial component have streamlined efforts to improve water usage ratio.
of the Women empowerment program and is a robust We currently have ongoing projects in more than 17
platform that builds the capacity of micro-entrepreneurs locations, with the latest additions being our partnership
providing a safe space to share experiences, address with Splash Nepal to complete RWH& GWR installations
challenges and foster growth. The program has touched at Narayani Model School in Chitwan with more than
more than 20 districts of Nepal, and focuses on enhancing 3800 students, and restoring 22 water spouts and
entrepreneurial knowledge, encouraging growth and replenishing groundwater in at Balaju Park with CIUD.
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BALAJUBAISHDHAARA: RESTORING HERITAGE,
REPLENISHING GROUNDWATER

With the aim to address the increased demand of Urban Water,
Coca-Cola Beverages Nepal in partnership with Centre for Integrated
Urban Development (CIUD) and WaterAid Nepal (WAN) successfully
implemented a groundwater recharge system in Balaju Park. The
handover ceremony was conducted in the presence and support of the
deputy mayor of the KMC, Ms. Sunita Dangol.

The key objective of the project was to maintain the water table of the
park area thereby rejuvenating the discharge of the stone spouts, the
famous Baish Dhara and the community wells and spring sources. It
has been anticipated that this project will not only help in maintaining
the groundwater table of the peripheral areas of the project site, but
also help increase awareness for such initiatives which are necessary
to cope with acute water shortage due to the rapid urbanization and
changing climate patterns. The project is anticipated to recharge an
additional 30,000 kilolitres annually into the ground.

NARAYANI MODEL SCHOOL: PROVIDING ACCESS TO
CLEAN WATER

A joint initiative between Coca-Cola Beverages Nepal and Splash
Nepal to provide clean, safe drinking water and build an urban resilient
community through rainwater harvesting and groundwater recharge in
Narayani Model Secondary School in Chitwan

The project includes the installation of 2 UF Filter systems along with
drinking water supply in 12 taps of bottle fillers and 8 Bubbler Faucet taps
attached with 4 water stations with dual spouts respectively. The system
will benefit over 5000 people including students and school members.
The project also has a built in rainwater storage tank, to help ensure
recharge of rainwater to help ensure sustainable access to water in the
long term. The expected volume of potential water recharge through this
project is 18,00,000 litres annually.

A WORLD WITHOUT WASTE: OUR GREEN INITIATIVES

In 2018, Coca-Cola globally announced World Without Waste, with an aim of collecting and recycling the equivalent of
all bottles and cans that it produces by 2030. In support to its global vision, Coca-Cola in Nepal has taken upon many
recycling initiatives in order to achieve the “World Without Waste” objectives since the past decade through its several
projects namely Nagarmitra (2014), Recycler Saathi (2019), Refresh and Recycle (2020), Swachhta Sarathi (2023)
and Mountain Clean-Up Campaign (2019- 2023) and Well-Being Out of Waste (2024). We are currently running the
following programs this year:

Initiation of BABA (Balbalika and Batabaran) Program

Bottlers Nepal Limited in partnership with Centre for
Integrated Urban Development (CIUD) commenced BABA
(Balbalika and Batabaran translates to Children and
Environment) program, in the presence of the Kathmandu
Metropolitan City (KMC) in two community schools in the
inner core city areas of Kathmandu. The program was
launched through an inception workshop with the presence
of representatives from KMC, City Planning Commission
and the schools’ management team, where the program

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 34 ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



will be held. BABA project is envisioned by Kathmandu
Metropolitan City for its government schools (which are now
directly under the KMC).

The intent of this project is to provide additional knowledge
beyond books and to capacitate students in the sector of
environmental issues and responsibilities, which includes
waste management, recycling, reuse, upcycling, waste to
art, and many other activities. The school based program
has been consciously designed with hands-on learnings on
eco-friendly practices like waste segregation, recycling, reusing, and upcycling. The program will include activities on
topics related to WASH, Urban Water Management and Solid Waste Management.

Refresh and Recycle 2.0 Project with Doko Recyclers continues

We placed more PET Collection bins across Kathmandu and Chitwan as a part of raising awareness on the importance
of waste segregation. So far, we have placed 18 bins and aim to place additional 4 more bins strategically in high
footfall areas where PET bottles are used and discarded.

Waste Segregation bin at Le
Sherpa Farmers’ Market

Jamchen Vije_aya Stupa, Budhénilkantha




GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITIES

IN WHICH WE OPERATE

Community Engagement

We continue to invest in the community to improve health,
education and overall wellbeing. We have ensured
that we have health camps monthly for our Bharatpur
community, work to improve infrastructure for the old
people’s home, and continue to provide educational
resource support for school students in the neighboring
wards. All of our investments in CSR are as per the
mandate given by Department of Industry and we not
only invest in mitigating impacts to the environment, but
also in improving social welfare and overall livelihoods of
the communities that we reside in. We’ve also supported
nutritional food for more than 1500 youths residing in
juvenile homes to help encourage a better future for
otherwise excluded populations through CNN Superhero
Ms. Pushpa Basnet’'s ECDC butterfly home.

Support to ECDC- Juvenile Homes )

In 2023, CCBN
committed to support
Juvenile Homes
across Nepal with
a Nutrition Diet
Support Program.
This  support was
done in partnership
with ECDC led by Ms.
Pushpa Basnet (CNN 2012 hero). By the end of 2023,
we were able to complete the commitment to 8 Juvenile
Homes across Nepal benefiting 1,200 delinquents.

Madan Bhandari Park
We initiated a support .

towards Madan
Bhandari Park,
located at Tinkune,

Kathmandu- a park that
provides a public space
of the community living

there. Our support
mainly goes towards
the upkeep and

greenery of the park
that general public can
access and enjoy.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

36

Womens’ Day Celebrations

Women’s Day 2024 was celebrated at Women for
Human Rights Facility where founder Ms. L|Iy Thapa

- T by

shared the organization’s journey of fighting for the rights
or single/widowed women and the discrimination against
them. We also celebrated that we would be initiating the
first women-run MRF in Kathmandu with Women for
Human Rights in the coming year empowering women
in waste.

Monthly Health Clinic

At our company, we believe in the power of Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) to create a positive impact
on the communities we serve. One of our core CSR
initiatives focuses on ensuring inclusive access to health
for all. Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited (BNTL) has been
providing monthly health clinic to the local residents in
and around the vicinity of BNTL premises. The clinic,
prlmarlly benefiting women and elderly people, provided

: x“ﬁ["l

medical

essential
ensuring that those who might otherwise have limited
access to healthcare receive the attention they need.
By prioritizing the well-being of the most vulnerable, we
strive to foster a healthier, more resilient community.

services and health check-ups,
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Annual Stationery and Uniform Distribution
Ceremony

We understand that education is a fundamental right
and a powerful tool for social change. To this end, we
provide a year's worth of stationery and uniforms to
students attending community schools. This initiative not
only alleviates the financial burden on families but also
ensures that children have the necessary resources to
fully participate in their education. By supporting these
students, we are investing in the future of our community,
helping to cultivate the next generation of leaders and
change-makers.

Dhaan Diwas

National Paddy
Day (Dhaan Diwas)
was celebrated with
the  communities
of Bharatpur. 16
AamaSamuhas
(Mother's  Groups)
from nearby
communities engaged in joyful activities, including a
group rice plantation competition and a lively mud race.

Recognition by Bikash Tole Bikash Committee for our support to the community

BEING THERE FOR COMMUNITIES
WHEN THEY NEED US THE MOST

Jajarkot Earthquake Relief Support
from Coca-Cola Beverages Nepal

Under Coca-Cola’s “Say We Care” campaign,
CCBN provided 500 tarps & 50 tents to
support between 5000-6000 individuals to
the earthquake affected areas in Jajarkot
as an immediate relief response. The relief
materials were handed over to the NGO,
Hami Nepal who supported in the distribution
to affected households. Likewise, 1000
cases of Kinley water were handed over to
the CDO of Jajarkot on the same day as the
earthquake.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

Dahi Chiura Program with BHR Ward
9 Elderly People
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Statement of Value Added

HELP US TO UTILIZE

OUR INPUTS

TO DRIVE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
SUSTAINABILITY AND LONGTERM

Financial Resources
Strong balance sheet supporting our growth plans
+ Shareholders Funds: NPR 4,177 MM

Manufacturing Capabilities

State-of-the-art manufacturing facilities securing
high level of productivity and product excellence
through continuous improvement

* Property, Plant and Equipment: NPR 5,526 MM
* Manufacturing line: 3

«  Warehouse: 2

Technology and innovation
Robust digital infrastructure and strong capabilities

* Investment for future-readiness in Information
Technology: NPR 69 MM

People and Capabilities

* Investment in Learning and Development: NPR
2,766,412/-
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Employees

Protecting and nurturing our employees:

« Employee turnover rate: 6.4%

e Training Hours: 3,208 manhour

Business Partners

Creating an inclusive ecosystem for

partners

» Over 250+ Distributors

* Over 100,000 + Retailers

»  87% Procurement of materials from local
supplier (Excluding Concentrate)

Making a difference

Empowering communities through our

CSR & sustainability initiatives:

» Water Replenishment: Over 17 ongoing
projects

*  Women Empowerment: 1,023+

Our Decarbonization Agenda:

» Utilization of Green energy: 58%

* Reduction in carbon emissions: (721.13)
Co2e-MT vs 2023

Government and Regulatory Bodies

Maximize our positive direct and

indirect impact on the economy

* Contribution to National Treasury in
FY2080/81: NPR 6,594 MM

Investors

Optimal resource utilization leads to

higher investor returns

* Networth: 7%

» Price Earning Ratio: 77%
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7 Reports

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
(For the Year 2080-81)

Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the Directors’ Report for the fiscal year ending 31st Asad 2081. As we look back on FY
2080-81, we approach the ongoing economic slowdown in Nepal with a mix of caution and determination. This report
details our financial performance, the external factors affecting our outcomes, and our strategic efforts to steer through
these challenging times.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Financial Performance

In FY 2080/81, the Revenue from Operations of the Company during the year under review is NPR 8,771 million. The
Company has made a net profit before tax of NPR 448 million despite the decline in market off-take resulting from
slowed economic condition

The summarized financial results of the company for the year are as follows

In NPR Million
Revenue from Operations 8,771 9,320
Gross Profit 2,171 2,360
Net Profit Before Tax 448 715
Net Profit After Tax 340 639

For further details, the financials are enclosed along with this report.
KEY BUSINESS CHALLENGES

This adverse financial outcome primarily results from several macroeconomic and socio-political factors affecting our
operations.

External Factors

1. Inflationary Pressures: The challenge of inflationary pressures, marked by a sharp rise in the costs of raw
materials and operational expenses, had initially threatened to disrupt the company's financial stability.

2. Geopolitical Tensions:Global geopolitical instability has introduced additional uncertainties and risks to our
business. Supply chain disruptions and fluctuating trade policies have affected the availability and cost of key
inputs, further compounding our financial difficulties.

3. Youth Outflow: The outflow of the youth demographic, who represent a major segment of our consumer base, has
a profound impact on our business. This migration has led to a decline in our primary market, reducing our sales
and affecting overall revenue. Furthermore, there has also been a change in consumption trends among youth and
the growing availability of alternative beverages has also impacted the business of the company.

Internal Factors

In the last fiscal year, the Company successfully exported 1.4 million UC to India, contributing to a 4% increase
in volume growth. However, this fiscal year saw a decline in export demand from India, resulting in a shortfall in
anticipated revenue. Despite these challenges, we remain committed to optimizing our operations and seeking new
growth opportunities.
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Overcoming Challenges

In response to these challenges, we are committed to implementing strategic measures aimed at revitalizing our
business and positioning ourselves for future success.

1. New 2 Liter Pack Size: Considering the changing consumer behavior and market dynamics, we have strategically
introduced 2 Litre Pack sizes to mitigate the impact of price increment due to increase in excise duty in FY 2078/79.
We have diversified our product pack sizes to cater to different consumption occasions. This strategic move is
designed to meet diverse needs of the target market, enhance our product appeal and improve market penetration.

2. 175 ml Pack Size Expansion: We are continuing to accelerate our commercial execution by focusing on the
grocery channel and recruiting consumers through the 175 ml pack size expansion to revive category growth
momentum.

3. Commercial Execution: In terms of commercial execution, the Company has significantly expanded our distribution
networks by increasing hubs and spokes, wholesalers, enhancing our ability to penetrate wider rural markets. This
expansion is complemented by improvements in store billing transactions and substantial investments in sales-
generating assets. These efforts are aimed at driving market reach and enhancing sales performance.

4. Supply Chain Productivity: This year, we optimized our power sources by switching from diesel to furnace oil,
which has significantly reduced operational expenses and enhanced cost-efficiency. Additionally, we undertook
a comprehensive restructuring of our logistic operations, streamlining processes and improving coordination to
increase overall productivity. These initiatives are aimed at reducing total cost and positioning the Company for
sustained operational excellence and financial stability.

5. Manpower Optimization:The Company has taken a strategic approach by focusing on enhancing the effectiveness
of our existing workforce. By leveraging our existing resources and fostering a culture of continuous improvement,
we aim to boost productivity while controlling labor costs. These initiatives are designed to ensure that our team
remains agile and capable of meeting operational demands without increasing headcount, thus reinforcing our
commitment to operational excellence and cost management.

6. Strategic Procurement: The company adeptly managed inflationary pressures through strategic, preemptive
negotiations. By identifying early signs of inflation, the company took decisive action to negotiate advance
purchases of essential raw materials with suppliers. This proactive approach allowed the company to secure these
materials at lower prices before the full impact of inflation took hold.

7. Digital Transformation: The Company has embarked on the journey of Digital Transformation since 2072 and
since then, the Companyhad invested heavily in the digital transformation. During the year under review, the
Company invested in digital transformation projects.

o Enhancing Operational Efficiency: We are investing in advanced digital tools and technologies to streamline
our operations. Automation and data analytics are being leveraged to improve supply chain management,
inventory control, and process efficiency with the introduction of DMS (distributor management system) and
SFA (Sales force automations). Furthermore, the Company has moved towards the automation of recurring
tasks by adopting a robotic Process Automation Platform. This transformation is part of a strategic move to
enhance efficiency, reduce errors and free up human employees to focus on more strategic and value-added
activities.

o eB2B digital Expansion: To adapt to changing consumer behaviors, we are expanding our online presence.
We have developed a new eB2B platform, Coke Buddy®, that allows us to reach a broader customer base
and provide a more convenient shopping experiencefor our customers.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors are pleased to recommend a final dividend of NPR 50 /- per equity share of face value of NPR
100/- for the year ended 315t Ashad, 2081.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s PKF T.R. Upadhya & Co. Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 06) will hold office until the conclusion of
the 38" Annual General Meeting and being eligible to be re-appointed, your Board of Directors, upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee Meeting have proposed to re-appoint M/s PKF T.R. Upadhya & Co. Chartered Accountant (Firm
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Registration No. 06) (Ms. Sumitra Rijal, Partner) as Statutory Auditor for FY 2081-82 with a remuneration of NPR
6,50,000/- (In Words Six Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) (excluding VAT and out-of-pocket expenses) .

HUMAN RESOURCES

The company is committed to a People-First Culture. Over the past year, we have remained focus on advancing
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEIl), strengthening our culture, and supporting Talent & Development. We are
dedicated to fostering an inclusive environment where every team member can thrive, and to developing talent that
drives our company’s growth while adapting to the changing needs of our workforce. Additionally, we are enhancing
people productivity by introducing the Performance Culture Index (PCI) 2.0

In today’s rapidly evolving business landscape, adapting and innovating our HR systems and processes has become
essential. Upgrading our HR system has been a top priority, have introduced a couple of system like Success Factor,
Celebrating You, HMM etc. This will not only streamline operations but also leverage data analytics to enable informed
decision-making. We have also highlighted the key initiatives undertaken this year in the Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed towards adherence to best-in-class good corporate governance. The Company continues
to strive to keep the trust of its stakeholders by being ethical, honest and transparent while doing business. The
Company has a strict Code of Business Conduct and Anti-Bribery Policy, which guides its business to be conducted
with honesty and integrity in all matters. Company’s employees, directors and vendors are required to strictly adhere
to the Code of Business Conduct in the workplace and in the larger community. The Company regularly monitors its
business to ensure compliance with the Code and the Laws of the Country. The Board of Directors regularly undergo
Annual Refresher Training to update themselves with the Laws of the Country and the Code of Business Conduct.

CORPORATE SUSTAINABILITY

The Coca-Cola system places sustainability at the heart of the business and seeks to make a difference and create a
better future for all the lives we touch across our value chain. The Company offers responsible beverage consumption
choices with a variety of packaging sizes, and endeavors to craft a sustainable value chain so all our partners can grow
with us, and to mitigate the impact of our business on the environment. With a history of over 50 years in the country, we
strive to lead by example in making a difference while ensuring that our community-driven, customer-oriented business
is profitable and socially responsible. We contextualize our global sustainability agenda to the needs of the country,
and focus on leveraging the golden triangle of empowerment, bringing the private sector, government, and non-profits
together to help the Government of Nepal achieve the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and efforts to graduate
from a least developed country. Details of the contribution in executing the sustainability vision are in the Corporate
Sustainability report, in the later part of this Annual Report

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Company has an efficient and robust system of internal controls in place. These controls include internal checks
and audits, along with financial and other control, which is required to carry on the business smoothly and lawfully,
whilst safeguarding the Company’s assets in a secure, practical, accurate and reliable manner.The Company has re-
appointed M/s SAR Associates as an Internal Auditor for the year 2024.

THE ROAD AHEAD

The company remains dedicated to enhancing profitability and preparing for future growth. Our commitment extends to
all stakeholders, including customers and consumers, with the goal of building a business poised for sustainable growth
in sales, market share, and profit. We are excited about the significant opportunities ahead and are confident that our
investments in strengthening the supply chain, enhancing manufacturing infrastructure, executing effective market
strategies, and developing a robust product portfolio will enable us to capitalize on these prospects.

We recognize that our people are the cornerstone of our success. Therefore, we will continue to invest in their
continuous development to enhance their skills and performance. This investment in our workforce is essential to
driving the business forward and achieving our medium- and long-term goals. By fostering a supportive and empowering
environment, we aim to cultivate talent and drive excellence.

Alongside our focus on people, we see significant opportunities ahead and are confident that our strategic investments
in supply chain improvements, manufacturing infrastructure, market execution, and product portfolio development will
enable us to seize these opportunities. We will also strive to make a positive impact on our communities by addressing
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environmental and societal concerns.

Our efforts to drive brand demand will be supported by strengthening our Route to Market (RTM) strategies, expanding
new pack offerings and categories, managing revenue growth effectively, and optimizing asset utilization through
automation. By connecting our functions and integrated business services in a well-coordinated and disciplined network,
we will uphold high standards of governance and work towards delivering improved returns on our investments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors extends its sincere gratitude to all our investors, business partners, customers, vendors, banks,
service providers, and regulatory and government authorities for their ongoing support of our company's initiatives.
We offer special recognition to our associates and the trade union for their steadfast determination, perseverance, and
unwavering commitment.

Additionally, the Board of Directors expresses heartfelt appreciation to the Government of Nepal, particularly the Ministry
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LEGAL REPORTING & DISCLOSURES
AS PER SEC 109 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2006(2063)
(a) Review of the transactions of the Previous Year:
As covered above under the “Business Overview” section
(b) Impact, if any, caused on the transactions of the Company from National & International Situation;
As covered above under the “Key Business Challenges” section.

(c) Achievements in the current year as at the date of report & opinions of the Board of Directors on
matters to be done in the future;

As covered above under “Business Overview”, “Key Business Challenges” and “The Road Ahead” section.
(d) Industrial or Professional Relations of the Company;

During the year under review, the relationship of the Company with its employees was harmonious resulting in
no strike through deepened and pro-active communication with the stakeholders, strong liaison with different
stakeholder and local authorities and driving purposeful engagement activities.

(e) Alterations in the Board of Directors and the reasons therefore;
None

(f) Major things affecting the transactions;
As covered above under “Key Business Challenges”

(g) Ifthere are any remarks in the Audit Report, the comments of the Board of Directors on such remarks;
None

(h) Amount recommended for payment by way of Dividend;

The Board of Directors has proposed NPR 50/- as cash dividend to the shareholders of the Company for the
Fiscal Year 2080/81.

(i) In the event of forfeiture of shares, details regarding the number of forfeited shares, face value of
such shares, total amount received by your Company for such shares prior to the forfeiture thereof,
proceeds of sale of such shares after the forfeiture thereof, and refund of amount, if any, made for
such forfeited shares;

NIL
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1)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Progress of transactions of the Company and of its subsidiary company(ies) in the previous financial
year and, review of the situation existing at the end of that financial year;

As covered above under various Sections.

Major transactions completed by the Company and its subsidiary company(ies) in the financial year
and any material changes taken place in the transaction of the Company during that period:

Bottlers Nepal Limited Sale of Raw Materials 607,761/-
Bottlers Nepal Limited Purchase of Raw Materials 8,386,331/-
Bottlers Nepal Limited Payment of Manpower Cost 177,733,306/-
Bottlers Nepal Limited Payment of Product transfer fee on account of sales made in 209,169,238/-

their respective territories

Bottlers Nepal Limited Receipt of Product transfer fee on account of sales made in 14,488,202/-
our respective territories

Disclosures made by the substantial shareholders of the Company to the Company in the previous
financial year;

None

Details of shareholding taken by the directors and officers of the Company in the previous financial
years and, in the event of their involvement in share transaction of the Company, details of information
received by the Company from them in that respect;

None

Details of disclosures made about the personal interest of any director and his / her close relative in
any agreement related with the Company during the previous financial year;

None.

In the event that the Company has bought its own shares (buy-back), the reasons for such buy-back,
number & face value of such shares, and amount paid by the Company for such buy-back;

None
Whether there is an internal control system in place or not and, details of such system, if it is in place;
As covered under the “Internal Control Framework” Section.

Details of total management expenses during the previous financial years;

Salaries, wages and other employee cost 85
Administrative Expenses 116
Total 201

Name list of the members of Audit Committee, remuneration, Allowances and facilities received by
them, details of the functions performed by that committee, and details of suggestions, if any, made
by that committee;

Please refer to Audit Committee details under Corporate Governance Section.

Amount, if any, outstanding & payable to the Company by any director, managing director, chief
executive, substantial shareholders or, his/her close relative or, by any firm, company, corporate body
in which he/she is involved;

None
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t)

(u)

v)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Amount of remuneration, allowances & facilities paid to the directors, managing director, chief
executive officer;

Remuneration, allowances and facilities given to Directors, Managing Director and Key Managers during the
year:

NPR MM

Director’s Fees & facilities

Managing Director - = - -
Key Managers - = - -
Total - 0.6 - 0.6

Notes: All the facilities provided to the Managers are as per the policy of your Company.
Amount of Dividends remaining unclaimed by the shareholders;

Unclaimed dividend that has crossed the period of 5 years is transferred to Investor Protection Fund. The
Total Unclaimed dividend as on Ashad 31, 2081 (15July, 2024) for the last 5 years is NPR 2,726,101/-. All
these unclaimed dividends have been transferred to your Company’s Share Registrar, M/s Nabil Investment
Banking limited for distribution to Shareholders.

Details of sale and purchase of properties pursuant to Section-141:

None

Details of transactions carried on between the Associated Companies pursuant to Section-175;
None

Any other matters required to be laid out in the report of Board of Directors under this Act and the
prevailing laws;

As per page no. 45
Other necessary matters;

i. Information (if any) regarding existence of any relative of Companies director or official currently
working in Office of the Company’s Registrar (“OCR”), Securities Board or any other regulatory
body concerning the Company in Officer or higher capacity.

We have not received any such information from any of the official or director of your Company.

ii. Information (if any) regarding any fines paid by any directors, officers or shareholders of the
Company to OCR in violation of Sec. 82 of the Act including information about the amount paid.

None

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

O
/\va \){}' ' \Jﬁ/_

Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh Pramod Kumar Karki
Chairperson Independent Director

Date: November 20, 2024
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Disclosure under Rule 26(2) of Securities Registration and Issue Regulation, 2073

1.

Report of the Board of Directors: Covered in
Directors Report of this Annual Report

Auditor’s Report: Included in Annual Report

Audited Financial Reports: Included in Annual

Report
Legal Proceedings:

None other than those on-going in the ordinary
course of business transaction.

Analysis of Stock Performance of the Body
Corporate:

i) Management’s view on the performance of
the stocks of the body corporate in the Stock
Exchange.

Price and transactions of the Company’s shares
are being determined by the open share market
operations through a duly established Stock
Exchange. Management’s view on this is neutral.

ii) High, Low and Closing price of the stocks
of the company during each quarter of the
preceding year along with total volume of
trading of shares and number of days traded:

m Maximum Price (NPR) Minimum Price (NPR) [ Closing Price (NPR) [ No. of trades | Days of trading

Q2
Q3
Q4

6.

16,200.00 12,800.00
13,606.80 10,500.00
17,508.00 11,700.00
14,069.80 12,208.10

Problems and Challenges

INTERNAL

1.

Rise in cost of operations with Inflation.

2. Rural distribution at effective cost.

EXTERNAL

1. Market and economic slowdown adversely impacting
the manufacturing sector.

2. Devaluation of Nepalese Rupees against the Foreign
Exchange Currencies resulting in higher material
cost.

STRATEGY

1.

Implementation of Coke Buddy for online order
processing and Vxceed, a solution for Demand Chain

12,951.00 510

12,849.90 918 48
12,702.00 2,412 58
13,000.00 1,465 61

Execution process, by the company to manage the
distributor network and obtain real-time data for better
decision making.

Focus on channel financing with the goal of providing
easier liquidity access to distributors.

Continuous assessment of the risk exposure of
the company to the internal and external factors
and effective implementation of risk management
procedures

Continuous development of cost effective distribution
models for upcountry areas.’

Corporate Governance

Incorporated in detail under Corporate Governance
section in this Annual Report.

Disclosure under Rule 20(4) of Directives Related to Corporate Governance for Listed
Companies, 2074

The Board of Directors had approved the Corporate Governance Report as per the prescribed format on 20" November
2024 and the signed copy of same has been sent to Securities Board of Nepal for recording.

Brief Excerpts of the Corporate Governance Report

Compliance with the Directions and Directives issued by the regulatory body from time to time and .
. . . . . . . Complied
all the requirement of prevailing Acts and Regulations including Directions:
2 Compliance with the terms and conditions prescribed by the regulator at the time of issuing license. | Complied
3 Compll'ahce with the directions given by the regulatory body during review, inspection and Complied
supervision:

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED
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Certified By:

)

Pratima Burma
Compliance Officer
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8 SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder Structure

o Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited —Paid-up share capital of NPR 121,000,000/- with the majority shares (i.e. 90.78%)
held by its’ Parent Company, M/s Bottlers Nepal Limited.

Representation of Bottlers Nepal Limited
Mr. Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh

Mr. Lukas Zapletal

Ms. Shalini Ratwatte

Mr. Gunjan Dhawan

a bk w D -

Mr. Surendra Silwal
Representation of Public Shareholders
1. Mr. Ajay Kumar Shrestha

Independent Director
@ Other Shareholders

Bottlers Nepal Ltd 1. Mr. Pramod Kumar Karki

Unclaimed Dividend/ Unpaid Dividend

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2006 (including amendment) and Investor Protection Fund
Operation and Management Procedures, 2016, dividend not encashed/claimed within 5 years from the date of
declaration is to be transferred to Investor Protection Fund.

The Total Unclaimed dividend as on Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) for the last 5 years is NPR 27,26,101/- All these
Unclaimed dividends are transferred to our Share Registrar, M/s Nabil Investment Banking Limited for distribution to
Shareholders. The details of unclaimed dividends can be obtained from our Share Registrar, M/s Nabil Investment
Banking Limited.

Categories of Shareholders

Category No. of Shareholders No. of Shareholding

Demat Account Holders 1,424 1,200,613
Physical Account Holders 110 9,387
Total Shareholders 1,534 1,210,000

Share prices

Year MSximum CEN] AUl Trading days
(In NPR) (In NPR) Trades S

2076-77 9,274 5,847 6,200 100
2077-78 12,178 6,099 10,262 4,045 231
2078-79 17,670 9,750 13,000 4,690 237
2079-80 14,880 11,152 13,800 2,754 225
2080-81 17,508 10,500 13,000 5,305 223

Shareholder Relationship

The Board values the Company's stakeholders and strives to take their concerns and interests into account when
making business decisions. This not only enables it to anticipate and manage risk effectively, but also helps it identify
new business opportunities and improve Company's relationship with its stakeholders.

The shareholders are given the opportunity at the AGM to get updates and ask questions from the Chairperson and
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Management team and vote on the various matters of Company's Business on the agenda. The Company encourages
its shareholders to attend its AGM and is committed to dealing with shareholder queries in a respectful and timely
manner whenever they are received by the Company.

In order to strengthen our relation with shareholders and provide efficient services to the shareholders, Nabil Investment
Banking Limited has been re-appointed as “Registrar to Shares”.

Communication to Shareholder

Effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance. With this the company
regularly interacts with shareholders through multiple modes of communication.

The Quarterly Report of the Company’s performance is published in national daily newspaper complying with the Legal
Provisions of Nepal as well as the official website of the Company (bnl.com.np) .

The Quarterly and Annual Financial Reports are reported to regulatory authorities like Office of Company Registrar
(OCR), Department of Industry (DOI), Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON) and Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE)
complying with the Legislative Provision of Nepal.

Address for Correspondence

All shareholders’ correspondence should be forwarded to Nabil Investment Banking Limited, the share registrar of the
Company at the address mentioned below:

Nabil Investment Banking Limited
Company Secretary/Compliance Officer

OR Ms. Pratima Burma
Manager- Legal & Company Secretary

3rd Floor, Central Plaza
Narayanchaur, Naxal, Kathmandu
Email: info@nabilinvest.com.np

Phone Numbers: - +977-01-4411604, 4411733 E-mail: investorrelations@coca-cola.com.np
Phone: +977-1-4352294 or 435288, Ext 216, 217

RTS/RTA: Ext. 117, 145
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PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.

124 Lal Colony Marg, Lal Durbar

g P K F Kathmandu, Nepal

977 01 4510927, 4520026
trunco@ntc.net.np
www.pkf.trunco.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2081
(15 July 2024), and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024),
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics for professional
accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063 and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Code of Ethics
for professional accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the financial year ended on
31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024). These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key
Audit Matter

Revenue Recognition
(Refer Note 19 of the financial statements)

amount of revenue can be measured
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Revenue from the sale of goods Our audit procedures included the

(hereinafter referred to as "Revenue”) is following:

recognized when the Company performs = Assessed the appropriateness of @}\
its obligation to its customers and the the Company's revenue recognition (;»/ Ny
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PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co. is a member of PKF Global, the network of member firms of PKF International Limited, each.Gf.'._ e
which is a separate and independent legal entity and does not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or
inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm(s).



reliably and recovery of the consideration accounting policies in line with

is probable. NFRS 15 (Revenue) and tested
The timing of Revenue recognition is thereof.

relevant to the reported performance of * Evaluated the integrity of the

the Company. The management COF’ISdeI‘S Company’s general information and
revenue as key measure Df eVa]UatiOn Of techn0|ogy control envwonment and
performance. tested the operating effectiveness

of IT application controls over
Revenue recognition, the detailed
process flow of sales, segregation

. o of duties for the process followed,
The cut-off is the key assertion insofar as automated Steps and manua“y

revenue recognition is concerned since an intervened processes.
inappropriate cut-off can resultin a
material misstatement of the results for the
year.

There is a risk of revenue being recorded
before the performance obligation is
completed by the Company.

* Performed detailed analysis of
revenue, analytical testing with
monthly sales information filed with
tax authorities, testing the timing of
its recognition and accuracy of the
amounts recognized and
verification of the supporting
information of the revenue
transactions.

= Tested the supporting
documentation for a selected
sample of sales transactions
recorded during the period closer to
the year-end and subsequent to the
year-end to evaluate whether
revenue was recognized in the
correct period as part of cut-off
procedures.

= We assessed the adequacy of
disclosure in respect of revenue as
per NFRS 15.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The management of the Company is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report including the report
of the Board of Directors, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. This report is expected to be made available to us after the date of the
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
financial statements

The management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with NFRSs, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentiocnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with ethical requirements in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
professional accountants regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained the information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the
statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024), the statement of
profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the Company Act, 2063 and are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company and proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far as
appeared from our examination of the books of account of the Company necessary for
the purpose of our audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors
or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating
to the accounts or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the
Company relating to the accounts in the Company. Also, we have not come across any
accounting fraud, so far as it appeared from our examination of the books of accounts
of the Company.
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“Sumitra Rijal i

Partner

PKF T R Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 20 November 2024
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

UDIN: 241125CAO00718dUFxW
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Particulars

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets:
Non Financial
Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Financial Assets
Advances

Current Assets:

Non Financial
Inventories
Prepayments
Advances

Other Current Assets
Income Tax Receivable

Financial Assets

Other Current Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity:

Equity Share Capital
Reserve and Surplus

Liabilities:
Non-Current Liabilities:

Non Financial
Deferred Tax Liablity

Financial Liabilities:

Retirement Benefit Obligation

Lease Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Financial Liabilities

Retirement Benefit Obligation

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Lease Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
Non Financial Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st Ashad, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Note As at 31st Ashad 2081
3 10,559,823
4 5,526,487,146
6 5,138,557
7 2,710,199,065
8.1 56,026,035
8.2 662,292,228
8.3 42,060,892
9 73,588,974
8.4 66,679,674
10 923,384,395
11 20,095,880
10,096,512,669
12 121,000,000
13 4,055,905,896
5.3 207,635,002
14.1 413,531,800
16 112,404,795
14.1 51,505,000
15.2 2,589,715,495
15.3 1,220,446,673
16 28,898,240
17 1,225,280,436
18 70,189,332

Notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of this Financial Statements

Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh

Chairman

Gunjan Dhawan
Director

Pramod Kumar Karki
Independent Director

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

For & on behalf of the Board

Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan
Chief Executive Officer

Shalini Ratwatee
Director

Redwin Antonio Duay
Country Finance Director

Date: 5th Mangsir, 2081 (20th November, 2024)
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Lukas Zapletal
Director

Director
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Figures in NPR
As at 31st Ashad 2080

6,104,051
5,712,615,371

1,733,078

1,887,076,286
48,091,580
963,645,712

90,555,138

80,904,890
430,985,174
19,029,812
9,240,741,092

121,000,000
3,787,305,550

216,548,493

456,414,470
91,627,097

62,403,000
2,776,407,981
513,692,979
8,982,437
1,194,732,911
11,626,174
9,240,741,092

As per our attached
report of even date
Sumitra Rijal
Partner
PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ajay Kumar Shrestha



Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Ashad, 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Revenue from Operations 19 8,771,297,424 9,320,034,090
Cost of goods sold 20 (6,600,775,248) (6,959,747,459)
Gross Profit 2,170,522,176 2,360,286,631
Other Operating Income 21 31,840,520 80,922,863
Selling and Distribution Expenses 22 (1,280,538,932) (1,234,907,347)
Administrative and Operating Expenses 23 (200,714,056) (180,501,138)
Profit from Operations 721,109,708 1,025,801,009
Finance Costs 24 (272,871,038) (315,856,229)
Finance Income 25 200,571 4,747,023
Profit Before Tax 448,439,241 714,691,803

Income Tax Expense

Current tax 5.1 (88,602,414) (67,479,550)
Prior period tax adjustments 5.1 (29,357,972) -
Deferred Tax 5.2 9,202,771 (8,380,893)
Net Profit for the year 339,681,626 638,831,360
Basic/Diluted Earnings per share 281 528

Notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of this Financial Statements

As per our attached
report of even date
Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan Lukas Zapletal Sumitra Rijal

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director Partner
PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

For & on behalf of the Board

Gunjan Dhawan Shalini Ratwatee Ajay Kumar Shrestha
Director Director Director

Pramod Kumar Karki Redwin Antonio Duay

Independent Director Country Finance Director

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 5th Mangsir, 2081 (20th November, 2024)
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashad, 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year as per Statement of Profit or Loss 339,681,626 638,831,360

Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on defined benefit plan schemes 1,808,000 29,874,000
Deferred Tax on Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (289,280) (4,779,840)
Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax 1,518,720 25,094,160
Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax 341,200,346 663,925,520

Notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of this Financial Statements

As per our attached

For & on behalf of the Board report of even date

Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan Lukas Zapletal Sumitra Rijal

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director Partner
PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Gunjan Dhawan Shalini Ratwatee Ajay Kumar Shrestha

Director Director Director

Pramod Kumar Karki Redwin Antonio Duay

Independent Director Country Finance Director

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 5th Mangsir, 2081 (20th November, 2024)
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st Ashad, 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR

Securities
Premium
Reserve

Particulars

Share Capital

Balance as at 1st Shrawan 2079
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Dividends

Balance as at 1st Shrawan, 2080
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Dividends

Balance as at 31st Ashad, 2081

121,000,000

121,000,000

121,000,000

Notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of this Financial Statements

Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh
Chairman

Gunjan Dhawan
Director

Pramod Kumar Karki
Independent Director

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

952,000

952,000

952,000

For & on behalf of the Board

Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan
Chief Executive Officer

Shalini Ratwatee
Director

Redwin Antonio Duay

Country Finance Director

Date: 5th Mangsir, 2081 (20th November, 2024)
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Actuarial Retained
reserve Earnings
(62,254,920) 3,257,282,950 3,316,980,030
- 638,831,360 638,831,360
25,094,160 25,094,160
- (72,600,000) (72,600,000)
(37,160,760)  3,823,514,310  3,908,305,550
339,681,626 339,681,626
1,518,720 1,518,720
(72,600,000) (72,600,000)
(35,642,040) 4,090,595,936 4,176,905,896
As per our attached
report of even date
Lukas Zapletal Sumitra Rijal
Director Partner

Director

PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ajay Kumar Shrestha
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31st Ashad, 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 448,439,241 714,691,803
Adjustments for non cash and non operating:
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 645,258,832 602,584,059
Amortization of Intangible Assets 14,862,748 7,378,552
Loss/ (gain) on sale/write off of Property, Plant and Equipment (3,306,786) (10,678,739)
Finance income (200,571) (4,747,023)
Finance costs 272,871,038 315,856,229
Modification of Lease Liability (3,046,316)
Working capital adjustments:
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payable and other liabilities 838,802,934 57,281,695
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (51,972,670) (12,648,000)
Decrease / (Increase) in trade and other receivables (520,234,900) (85,360,519)
Decrease / (Increase) in loans and advances 290,013,550 (482,812,843)
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories (823,122,779) (390,709,499)
Cash generated from operations 1,108,364,321 710,835,714
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (100,994,222) (146,068,984)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 1,007,370,099 564,766,730

B. CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment

Purchase of Intangibles

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Interest Received

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Borrowings (186,692,486) 373,446,004
Interest paid (275,116,092) (317,914,332)
Dividend paid (72,600,000) (72,600,000)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (534,408,578) (17,068,328)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 1,066,068 (72,410,770)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
Beginning of Year 19,029,812 91,440,582
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Year 20,095,880 19,029,812
Notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of this Financial Statements
As per our attached
For & on behalf of the Board report of even date
Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan Lukas Zapletal Sumitra Rijal
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director Partner
PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Shalini Ratwatee
Director

Gunjan Dhawan
Director

Pramod Kumar Karki
Independent Director

Redwin Antonio Duay
Country Finance Director

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 5th Mangsir, 2081 (20th November, 2024)
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(459,107,298)
(14,657,664)
1,668,938
200,571
(471,895,452)
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(635,128,825)
7,984,737
7,034,915

(620,109,173)

Ajay Kumar Shrestha
Director



Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

1. Corporate Information

Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited (“Company”) is a public limited Company listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd
incorporated under the Companies Act of Nepal. The registered office of the Company and the principal place of
business is located at Balaju Industrial District, Balaju, Kathmandu, Nepal and regional office is located at Bharatpur,
Chitwan, Nepal.

Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited is a licensed bottler, marketer and distributor of non-alcoholic beverages products of The
Coca-Cola Company, Atlanta. The Board of Directors has approved the financial statements for issue on its meeting
held on 5" Mansir, 2081 (20" November, 2024) and has recommended for approval of shareholders in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)
as issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB). These conform, in material respect, to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). The financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

This section describes the critical accounting judgement that the company has identified as having potentially material
impact on the company’s financial statements and sets out our significant accounting policies that relate to the financial
statements as a whole. Accounting policies along with explanatory notes, wherever such explanation is required,
are described in specific relevant sections. The company’s accounting policies require the management to exercise
judgement in making accounting estimates.

2.1 Accounting Pronouncements

The company for its preparation of financial statement has adopted accounting policies to comply with the
pronouncements made by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. The Financial Statements have also been
prepared in accordance with the relevant presentational requirements of the Company Act, 2063 of Nepal.

2.2 Accounting Convention

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost except for certain material items that have been measured
at fair value as required by the relevant NFRS and explained in the ensuing policies below.

2.3 Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the Company is a going concern.
2.4 Presentations

The figures for previous years are rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary for the purpose of facilitating
comparison to the extent permitted by the NFRS. Appropriate disclosures are made wherever necessary.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.
The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

*  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
+  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period or

»  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
The Company classifies a liability as current when it is:

+  Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading
*  Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.

The company operating cycle has been defined as a twelve-month period.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by function” method.

The statement of cash flows has been prepared using indirect method. Cash flows from operating activities, in addition
to the adjustments from profit for non-cash and non-operating activities, movements in working capital, interest and
taxes, separately include cash flows relating to employee bonus and retirement benefits.

2.5 Accounting Policies

NFRS requires adoption of accounting policies that are most appropriate to the company’s circumstances determining
and applying accounting policies. Directors and management are required to make judgement in respect of items where
the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the company’s
reported financial position, results or cash flows.

Specific accounting policies have been included in the specific section of the notes for each items of financial statements
which requires disclosures of accounting policies or changes in accounting policies. Effect and nature of the changes
have been disclosed.

2.5.1 Change in Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements is in line with applicable NFRS. The policies have been consistently applied
to all years presented, unless otherwise stated and there is no change in accounting policies during the current year.

2.6 Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in line with applicable NFRS which requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future
periods. The estimates are reviewed periodically by the management.

Specific accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever the estimates have
been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

2.6.1 Change in Accounting Estimates

Change in accounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or a liability, or the amount of the
periodic consumption of an asset, that results from the assessment of the present status of, and expected future benefits
and obligations associated with, assets and liabilities. Changes in accounting estimates result from new information or
new developments and accordingly, are not corrections of errors.

2.7 Financial periods

The company prepares financial statements in accordance with the Nepalese financial year using Nepalese calendar.
The corresponding dates for Gregorian calendar are as follows:
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

Particulars Nepalese Calendar Date/Period Gregorian Calendar Date/Period
SFP* Date 315 Ashad, 2081 15t July, 2024
Current Reporting Period 18t Shrawan 2080- 315! Ashad 2081 17" July 2023 — 15™ July 2024
Comparative SFP* Date 313t Ashad, 2080 16™ July, 2023
Comparative reporting period 15t Shrawan 2079- 315t Ashad 2080 17" July 2022 — 16™ July 2023

*Statement of Financial Position

2.8 Presentation currency

The company’s financial statement is presented in Nepalese Rupees which is also the company’s functional currency.
2.9 New Standards issued and not yet effective

The Company has not opted for the early adoption of any of the new set of NFRS pronounced by ICAN, which may
relate to it, but whose application was not mandatory for financial year 2080-81 (2023-24). These standards include:

NFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” applicable from 16th July 2025, and the Company is currently assessing the impact
and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

As per Notice by ICAN regarding Carve-outs on provision of NFRS 9, Financial Instruments provides for alternative
treatments of provisions for calculation of "Effective Interest Rate" and "Recognition of Expected Credit Loss".

As per the alternative treatment stated in the carve-out, the entity is relieved from complying with the provisions of
NFRS 9 "Financial Instrument" Impairment requirement for the recognition and measurement of Loss Allowance on
Financial Instruments based on Lifetime Expected Credit Loss method.

Instead of the "Expected Credit Loss Method", the alternative treatment requires the entity to assess if there is any
objective evidence of impairment in the financial asset or group of Financial Asset. If such objective evidence regarding
impairment is present, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. And
the carrying amount of the asset/s shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. Such
amount of loss shall be charged to the Statement of Profit/loss of the entity.

2.10 Foreign Currency Translations

Transactions entered by the Company in a currency other than the currency of primary economic environment in
which it operates are recorded at the rates prevailing when the transactions occur. Exchange differences arising on
foreign currency transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Unsettled
foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in statement of profit
or loss.
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

3. Intangible Assets

Figures in NPR
Particulars Computer Intangible assets Total
Software under development

Cost
Opening balance at 1st Shrawan 2079 117,092,845 - 117,092,845
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance at 31st Ashadh 2080 117,092,845 - 117,092,845
Additions 14,657,664 - 14,657,664
Disposals - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 131,750,509 - 131,750,509
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening balance at 1st Shrawan 2079 103,610,242 - 103,610,242
Charge for the year 7,378,552 - 7,378,552
Disposals - -
Balance at 31st Ashadh 2080 110,988,794 - 110,988,794
Charge for the year 10,201,892 - 10,201,892
Disposals - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 121,190,686 - 121,190,686
Net Block
Closing Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 10,559,823 - 10,559,823
Closing Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 6,104,051 - 6,104,051

Intangible assets are recognized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific intangible assets
such as, software, where it is probable that such asset will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost.

Computer software cost are amortized based on expected useful life which is estimated as 5 years (the estimate is
being reviewed periodically). Residual Values of intangibles are estimated to be NIL. Costs associated with maintaining
software are recognized as expenses as and when incurred. At each statement of financial position date, these assets
are assessed for indication of impairment. In the event that an asset's carrying amount being greater than its recoverable
amount, the assets are considered to be impaired and are written down immediately.

The expenditure incurred in acquisition and installation of new software till the date of commissioning is recognized as
intangible under development. Software is capitalized upon successful test run and after meeting recognition criteria.
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

Property, Plant and Equipment are initially measured at cost in the statement of financial position. These are inclusive
of all cost less excluding any recoverable taxes less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if applicable for each class of assets. Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized
as an asset, if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes the purchase price and other directly attributable costs of Property, Plant and Equipment. Cost also
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. If an item of
Property, Plant and Equipment consists of several components with different estimated useful lives, those components
that are significant are depreciated over their individual useful lives. Subsequent costs that do not qualify the recognition
criteria under NFRS are expensed as and when incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is considered for determination
of cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria under NAS 16 and IFRIC 1. Management determines that such
cost is not material thus are not considered.

Assets not ready for intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed under “Capital Work in Progress.”
Capital Work in Progress are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss, if any. Depreciation on these assets
will commence when these assets are ready for their intended use and classified under specific asset category.

The company has made a provision for missing/obsolescence assets in the financial statement and the carrying gross
value and the relevant accumulated depreciation has been adjusted in specific block of assets wherever required. Post
appropriate approval, the individual item of assets is written off from Fixed Assets Register (FAR). Refer “Adjustments”
row of the above table for the movement in such provisions during the year. As on 315t Ashad 2081 the net provision for
missing/obsolescence assets is NPR 3,782,980 (As on 31st Ashad 2080 was NPR 5,421,343)

The company has registered first legal mortgage covering all fixed assets including the land and building owned by
the company at Plot No. 22, 97, 99, 341, 335, 337, 339, 999, 1001 and 1003 at ward No. 9 Bharatpur Municipality,
Chitwan, Nepal in order to avail banking facilities including term loan, Overdraft, Letter of credit etc. Also, the company
has provided hypothecation of specific charge over plant and machineries to bank.

4.1 Depreciation

Depreciation on items of Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on the straight-line method based on the useful
life of the assets estimated by the management. Depreciation on addition to Property, Plant and Equipment is provided
on pro-rata basis in the year of purchase when the asset is ready for its intended use. The residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation methods of assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end and if expectations differ from
previous estimates, are accounted for as a change in accounting estimates in accordance with NAS 8. If an item of
Property Plant and Equipment consist of several components with different useful lives, those components that are
significant are depreciated over their individual useful life.
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

Particulars Clubbed under following class of assets Useful Life (Years)
Building Building 40
Plant and Machinery Plant and Machinery 20
Cooler Cooler 9
Office Equipment Office Equipment 5
Computer Accessories Office Equipment 4
Bottles Containers 5
Crates Containers 8
Plastic Pallets Other Assets 5
Furniture and Fixtures Other Assets 10
Motor Vehicles Other Assets 5
Other Assets* Other Assets 10

*Other Assets majorly include transformers, electrical installations and soft drink analyzer.
4.2 Right of Use (ROU) Assets

The company has entered into a lease agreement for the use of godowns for a term of 2 years to 10 years. Details of
leased assets are provided below:

Party Asset Agreement No. From To Annual Lease Payment

1 1st Mar 2018 30th Apr 2024 11,344,270

1 1st May 2024 29th Feb 2028 3,000,000

2 15th Aug 2018 30th Apr 2024 3,177,570

Greenhand | Godown 2 1st May 2024 29th Feb 2028 848,800
Pithuwa (Buildings) |3 15th Jan 2019 15th Jan 2024 8,447,330
3 16th Jan 2024 29th Feb 2028 8,779,200

4 15th Sep 2019 14th Sep 2024 1,889,262

5 1st Mar 2020 28th Feb 2030 6,577,519

Total 44,063,951

Accordingly, at the date of commencement the company has recognized the right of use of assets and corresponding
lease liability at present value of the future lease payment discounted at rate of 10% over the lease period. The interest
rate has been assumed to be the effective rate of interest implicit in the lease for the purpose of discounting.

Subsequently the company has charged the depreciation on ROU over the lease period and interest expense on lease
liability, being a component of finance cost is presented separately as a charge in the statement of Profit or Loss.

4.3 De-recognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from the use of that asset. The gain or loss arising from the disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is
the difference between net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of that item and is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.
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Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

4.4 Capital Work in Progress

The expenditure incurred in acquisition and installation of new systems and equipment till the date of commissioning
or civil works under construction till the date of completion is recognized as Capital works-in-progress. Equipment is
capitalized upon commissioning and civil works are capitalized upon handing over after being capable of being used.
Coolers and other assets purchased by the company is capitalized in books only after the asset is put to use by the
entity for its operations.

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Buildings - 2,661,240
Machinery 66,687,407 246,675
Total 66,687,407 2,907,915

5. Income Tax

Income Tax on profit or loss for the year comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes. Income tax is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity.

5.1 Current Income Tax Figures in NPR
Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Current tax on profit for the year 88,602,414 67,479,550
Adjustment for prior periods 29,357,972 -
Total 117,960,386 67,479,550
5.2 Deferred Tax Figures in NPR
Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (9,202,771) 8,380,893
Total (9,202,771) 8,380,893

5.3 Deferred Tax Liability

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes at the
tax rate of 16%. Deferred tax assets have been recognized in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences
giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized either in other comprehensive income or
in equity. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
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FY : 2080-81 Figures in NPR
Particulars Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary Diff
1 Property, Plant & Equipment 5,278,051,956 | 3,256,590,900 | (2,021,461,057)
2 Intangible Assets 10,559,823 14,219,383 3,659,560
3 Retirement benefit provision (465,036,800) - 465,036,800
4 Provision for Expenses to be claimed on actual expenditure (248,449,649) - 248,449,649
5 ROU Assets 134,706,747 - (134,706,747)
5 Lease Liability (141,303,035) - 141,303,035
6 Income tax business loss carry forward - -
Total Amount (1,297,718,760)
Tax Rate 16% | (207,635,002)
Opening Deferred tax Assets/(Liability) (216,548,493)
Deferred tax provision recognised 8,913,491
Closing Deferred tax Assets/(Liability) (207,635,002)
Chargel/(Credit) to OCI 289,280
Chargel/(Credit) to PL (9,202,771)
FY : 2079-80 Figures in NPR
Particulars Carrying Amount Tax Base Temporary Diff
1 Property, Plant & Equipment 5,554,637,849 | 3,570,772,434 | (1,983,865,415)
2 Intangible Assets 6,104,051 7,479,755 1,375,704
3 Retirement benefit provision (518,817,470) - 518,817,470
4 Provision for Expenses (Including Deferred Revenue and
CSR) (101,506,415) - 101,506,415
5 Income tax business loss carry forward - - -
Total Amount (1,362,165,826)
Tax Rate 16% | (217,946,532)
Opening Deferred tax Assets/(Liability) (203,387,762)
Deferred tax provision recognised (14,558,770)
Deferred tax asset on NFRS 16 1,398,039
Closing Deferred tax Assets/(Liability) (216,548,493)
Chargel/(Credit) to OCI 4,779,840
Charge/(Credit) to PL 8,380,891
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5.4 Reconciliation

Reconciliation of current tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s effective tax rate for the year.

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 | For the Year 2079-80
Accounting profit before Income Tax 448,439,241 714,691,803
Tax calculated at statutory rate applicable 71,750,279 114,350,688
Tax effect of income that are not taxable (final withholding) for tax purpose (529,086) (1,708,598)
Tax effect of income that are not deductible for tax purpose (net) 14,497,523 (52,872,828)
Effect of Different Tax Rates 2,883,698 7,710,288
Current tax expenses 88,602,414 67,479,550

The company is special industry as defined u/s 11 of Income Tax Act 2058, the normal applicable tax rate for which
is 20%. Company has further availed rebate of 20% provided to special industries employing 300 or more Nepalese
employees during the year. Therefore tax rate applicable for income from special industy is 16%. However, income tax
rate for income from other than special industry is applicable for 25%.

As per Section 20(1) of Income Tax Act 2058, loss from one business can be set off against income from another
business. However, the company has opted to set off current year profit from special industry with special industry
losses incurred in previous year and offer income from non special industry at the rate of 25% and carry forward the

remaining losses from special industry which shall be set off against income from special industry in next financial
year/s.

6. Non - Current Financial Assets - Advances Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Advances to Employees 5,138,557 1,733,078
Total 5,138,557 1,733,078
7. Inventories Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Raw materials 1,795,347,091 979,065,381
Work-in-process 1,583,790 8,287,325
Finished goods 219,278,480 321,991,596
Consumables 693,989,704 577,731,984
Total 2,710,199,065 1,887,076,286

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion

and the necessary estimated expenses. The cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses are also considered for
determining the net realizable values.

In determining the cost of raw materials & packing materials, First in First out (FIFO) method is used. Cost of inventory
comprises of all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), cost
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

In determining the cost of consumables, stores and spares weighted average cost method is used.
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Cost of finished goods includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, direct labor and appropriate proportion
of fixed and variable production overheads incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.
Finished goods are valued based on weighted average method.

Inventories are presented net of allowance for obsolescence and other possible depletion in value or other losses.
Those allowances are estimated to approximate the net realizable value of such items. Allowance adjustments are
made for those inventories identified by management as obsolete based on 10 Year Aging or technical evaluation,

whichever is earlier.

Inventories have been pledged as lien for the purpose of availing bank overdraft facilities.

8. Other Current Assets

8.1 Current Non-Financial Assets — Prepayments

These are expenses paid for the period beyond the financial period covered under the financial statement. These will
be charged off as expenses in the respective period for which such expenses pertain to.

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 | As at 31st Ashad 2080
Prepaid Expenses 56,026,035 48,091,580
Total 56,026,035 48,091,580

8.2 Current Non-Financial Assets - Advances Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 | As at 31st Ashad 2080
Capital Advances - 9,937,635
Advance to suppliers 439,320,228 730,736,077
Balances with statutory/government authorities 222,972,000 222,972,000
Total 662,292,228 963,645,712

8.3 Current Non-Financial Assets — Other Current Assets

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 | As at 31st Ashad 2080
VAT Receivable (Net) 42,060,892 -
Total 42,060,892 -

8.4 Current Financial Assets — Other Current Assets

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 | As at 31st Ashad 2080
Advances to Employees 4,137,080 7,020,589
Security Deposits 103,884 142,320
Duty Refundable 17,164,787 56,109,914
LC Margin Receivables 44,220,768 17,592,811
Other Receivables 1,053,155 39,256
Total 66,679,674 80,904,890

Financial Instruments: Financial Assets

a) Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
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of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell
these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company in respect
of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which are not held for trading has
made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of
such equity instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument-by-instrument basis at the
time of initial recognition of such equity investments. Financial asset not measured at amortized cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets of the company comprise of advances, other current assets, Trade Receivables and cash &
cash equivalents. These instruments are mostly non-interest bearing and where interest component is present
the implicit interest rate approximates effective interest rate. These instruments are expected to be settled or
recovered within a year. Therefore, it is assumed that the carrying amount represents the amortized cost of the
assets.

c) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

d) De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under NFRS 9.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amounts measured at the
date of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

e) Risks associated with Financial Instrument- Financial Assets

The company has a risk management framework to monitor, access, mitigate and manage risks. This risk
management framework is given is Note 32.

9. Income Tax Receivables Figures in NPR
Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Advance Income Tax 683,929,172 683,910,184
Less: Income tax payable (610,340,198) (593,355,046)
Total 73,588,974 90,555,138
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10. Trade Receivables

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Trade receivables:
Secured, considered good 183,334,886 165,893,798
Unsecured considered good 655,271,851 254,611,693
Receivables from other related parties 84,777,658 10,479,683
Total 923,384,395 430,985,174

Bank overdrafts are secured against all receivables.
10.1 Trade Receivables

Trade receivables comprises of amount receivable from our customers and are non-interest bearing and are generally
on terms of 30 to 90 days.

Secured trade receivable are against Bank Guarantee provided by the customers.

10.2 Related Parties Transaction

It includes transactions with group companies and key management personnel which are disclosed in Note 31.
10.3 Impairment of financial assets

For allowances, assets with a potential need for a write-down are grouped together on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics, tested collectively for impairment, and written down, if necessary. Estimated irrecoverable amounts
are based on the ageing of the receivable balances, taking previous cases of default into consideration and historical
experiences.

Risks associated with Financial Instrument- Financial Assets

The company has a risk management framework to monitor, access, mitigate and manage risks. The risk management
framework is given is Note 32.

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad 2081

As at 31st Ashad 2080

Balances with Banks

— On current accounts 20,095,880 18,981,087
— Deposits accounts - -
Cash on hand - 48,725
Total 20,095,880 19,029,812

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short term highly liquid investments,
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily balances.

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the cash

requirements of the Company and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

The above balances are also considered as the cash & cash equivalents for Statement of Cash Flow purposes.
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12. Share Capital

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Number NPR Number NPR

Authorized
Ordinary shares of NPR 100 each 31,210,000 3,121,000,000 31,210,000 | 3,121,000,000
Issued and Paid Up
Ordinary shares of NPR 100 each 1,210,000 121,000,000 1,210,000 | 121,000,000
At the beginning of the year 1,210,000 121,000,000 1,210,000 121,000,000
At the end of the year 1,210,000 121,000,000 1,210,000 | 121,000,000
The shareholding pattern of the company is as follows

Shareholder Category As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares | % of holding
Bottlers's Nepal Limited 1,098,472 90.78% 1,098,472 90.78%
Other Shareholders 111,528 9.22% 111,528 9.22%
Total 1,210,000 100.00% 1,210,000 100.00%

Share issue expenses have not been netted off against the capital collected as these pertain to periods of initial
establishment of the company and such expenses have been charged off during those periods. The management
considers that the cost of obtaining information is more than the benefits derived and the effect of such the amounts to
be immaterial.

13. Reserve and Surplus Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Share Premium 952,000 952,000
Retained earnings 4,090,595,936 3,823,514,310
Actuarial Reserve (35,642,040) (37,160,760)
(As per Statement of Changes in Equity)
Total 4,055,905,896 3,787,305,550

Share premium is used to record the premium on issue of equity shares. These can only be utilized in accordance with
the provision of the Companies Act, 2063.

i)  Premium of NPR 20 each on 47,600 ordinary shares.

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 71 ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

14. Employee Benefits

Current Employment Benefits

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 | For the Year 2079-80
Salaries, wages and other employee cost
Cost of Goods Sold 410,376,329 401,925,318
Selling and Distribution Expenses 189,063,297 178,802,478
Administrative and Operating Expenses 73,108,511 53,509,887
Employee Bonus (As per Bonus Act 2074) 49,826,583 80,212,325
Defined Contribution Plan cost
Cost of Goods Sold 10,510,782 18,296,148
Selling and Distribution Expenses 4,842,392 9,155,415
Administrative and Operating Expenses 1,872,495 3,079,522
Defined Benefit Plan Cost
Cost of Goods Sold 45,802,161 51,132,583
Selling and Distribution Expenses 4,693,075 12,833,440
Administrative and Operating Expenses 3,762,094 5,389,068
Other Long Term Benefit Cost
Cost of Goods Sold 2,437,000 (323,402)
Selling and Distribution Expenses 482,000 (227,385)
Administrative and Operating Expenses 448,000 (76,213)
Total Employee Cost charged to SOPL for the Period 797,224,720 813,709,184
Actuarial loss on Defined Benefit Plan schemes charged to
SOCI for the Period (1,808,000) (29,874,000)
Total Employee Cost for the Period 795,416,720 783,835,184

14.1 Post-Employment Benefits

The company operates number of defined benefit and defined contribution plans for its employees of the company. The
defined benefit plan of the company includes leave encashment expenses, expenses pertaining to gratuity and other
retirement benefits.

The cost of the defined benefit plans, other long-term employment benefits and the present value of such obligations
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management
considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available Nepal Assured Lives
Mortality Table 2009 for the country. Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. In countries where there is no deep
market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Re measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

FY 2080-81 Figures in NPR
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment Others Total
Opening Liability 293,797,000 17,843,000 207,177,470 518,817,470
Current Service cost - 1,586,000 15,245,330 16,831,330
Interest Charge 22,950,000 1,474,000 16,062,000 40,486,000
Paid (77,584,000) (2,919,000) (29,094,000)| (109,597,000)
ﬁztct’;;ar:i(siziri‘z/ 'gscsl)duri”g the year 11,794,000 307,000  (13,602,000) (1,501,000)
Closing Liability 250,957,000 18,291,000 195,788,800 465,036,800
Current Liability 35,514,000 1,600,000 14,391,000 51,505,000
Non Current (Asset)/ Liability 215,443,000 16,691,000 181,397,800 413,531,800
Charge for the period to SoPL 22,950,000 3,367,000 31,307,330 57,624,330
Charge to SoCl 11,794,000 - (13,602,000) (1,808,000)
FY 2079-80 Figures in NPR
Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment Others Total
Opening Liability 302,527,000 20,591,000 238,221,470 561,339,470
Current Service cost 3,894,000 1,779,000 19,059,000 24,732,000
Interest Charge 20,783,000 1,465,000 16,096,000 38,344,000
Paid (50,840,000) (2,121,000) (18,892,000) (71,853,000)
Acturial (gain)/loss during the year 17,433,000 (3,871,000) (47,307,000) (33,745,000)
(recognised in OCI)
Closing Liability 293,797,000 17,843,000 207,177,470 518,817,470
Current Liability 43,072,000 1,607,000 17,724,000 62,403,000
Non Current (Asset)/ Liability 250,725,000 16,236,000 189,453,470 456,414,470
Charge for the period to SoPL 24,677,000 (627,000) 35,155,000 59,205,000
Charge to SoCl 17,433,000 - (47,307,000) (29,874,000)
Current and Non-Current Liability Breakup
FY 2080-81 Figures in NPR
Particulars Gratuity Sick Leave ReBti;:;r;;nt Total
Current Liability 35,514,000 1,600,000 14,391,000 51,505,000
Non Current (Asset)/ Liability 215,443,000 16,691,000 | 181,397,800 | 413,531,800
Net (Asset)/Liability as at 31st Ashad 2081 250,957,000 18,291,000 | 195,788,800 | 465,036,800
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FY 2079-80 Figures in NPR
Particulars Gratuity Sick Leave R'i;:::;ﬁnt Total
Current Liability 43,072,000 1,607,000 17,724,000 62,403,000
Non Current (Asset)/ Liability 250,725,000 16,236,000 | 189,453,470 | 456,414,470
Net (Asset)/Liability as at 31st Ashad 2080 293,797,000 17,843,000 | 207,177,470 | 518,817,470

14.2 Defined Benefit Plans
The defined benefit plan of the company includes Gratuity and Other Retirement benefits.
14.2.1 Gratuity

Gratuity for existing employees has been provided as per the actuarial assessment. The assessed amounts have been
recognized as liabilities. The gratuity scheme is computed on below basis:

A. Gratuity Benefit till 3rd September 2017:

Plan Service Definition Number of years of service rounded to the nearest integer.

Salary Definition Last drawn Basic Salary
Vesting Period 3 years
Normal Retirement Age 58 years

Nil for each year of service up to 3 years

Benefit on normal retirement/ 1/2 months’ salary of each year of service up to 7 years.

early retirement/death/ disability
in service

2/3 months’ salary for each year of service for service between 7 and 15 years.

1month salary for each year of service for service between 15 and 17 years.

1 month 5 days’ salary for each year of service for the service over 17 years.

Nil for each year of service up to 3 years

1/2 months’ salary of each year of service up to 7 years.

Benefit on withdrawal 2/3 months’ salary for each year of service for service between 7 and 15 years.

1 month salary for each year of service for service between 15 and 17 years.

1 month 5 days’ salary for each year of service for the service over 20 years.

No Limit

Maximum Limit

Tax on Gratuity* 15%, borne by the company

*The tax under gratuity scheme is applicable to the accrued service post 31st March 2002 and is payable at a flat rate
of 15% of the benefit using gross up approach. Hence, any service prior to 31st March 2002 does not attract any tax.

B. Gratuity Benefit on or after 4th September 2017

Plan Service Definition Number of years of service rounded to the nearest integer.

Salary Definition
Vesting Period
Normal Retirement Age

Last drawn Basic Salary
No vesting applicable
58 years

Benefit on normal retirement/ early

0, H .
retirement/death/ disability in service 8.33 % of Basic Salary per month for each year of service

8.33 % of Basic Salary per month for each year of service
Accumulated Corpus

Benefit on withdrawal

Maximum Limit

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 74 ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

C. Gratuity Benefit on or after 31st October 2022:

Effective 01st November 2022, the Gratuity scheme is a Defined Contribution scheme where a monthly contribution
is being made to the Social Security Fund (SSF). Hence the valuation will only be done for service rendered till 31st
October 2022. However, the Gratuity for service till 31st October 2022 will be paid on the last drawn salary. Employees
joining on or after 01st November 2022 are not entitled to 5 days of additional benefit on completion of 15 years of
service. Employees joining on or after 01st November 2022 are not entitled to reimbursement of tax on Gratuity benefit.
However, employees who have joined prior to 01st November 2022 will continue to get the tax reimbursement.

As per Section 53 of Labour Act 2074, minimum 8.33% of basic salary shall be provided to employees as gratuity after
3rd September 2017 from date of service. As per Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) entered by the company with
its employees, any employee completing 15 years of service at the time of retirement (20 years in case of withdrawal)
will be eligible for 35 days of benefit. Employees falling under these criteria will receive benefit as per CBA, which is
beneficial over the benefit provided as per Labour Act 2074. Company has provided for entire gratuity provision based
on actuarial valuation.

14.2.2 Other Retirement Benefits

Other retirement benefits include three days’ basic salary computed based on completion of 15 years compulsory
retirement or 20 years of completion of service for withdrawal and gold coin at compulsory retirement. Other retirement
benefits have been computed using actuarial assumptions. The assumptions made are the growth rate derived from
the past experience and discounting the long-term obligations at the end of each reporting period.

14.2.3 Sensitivity Analysis

FY 2080-81 Figures in NPR
Particulars Gratuity Lilac\ll(e R‘:::::;ﬁnt Total
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in discount rate (8,676,000) | (879,000) | (8,321,000) | (17,876,000)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in discount rate 9,322,000 959,000 9,044,000 | 19,325,000
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in salary escalationrate | 9,110,000 938,000 8,835,000 | 18,883,000
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in salary escalation rate | (8,567,000) | (868,000) | (8,217,000) | (17,652,000)

Figures in NPR

. . Sick Retirement
Particulars Gratuity Leave Benefit Total
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in discount rate (8,617,000) | (742,000) | (7,652,000) | (17,011,000)
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in discount rate 9,219,000 805,000 8,288,000 | 18,312,000

Effect on DBO due to 0.5% increase in salary escalation rate | 9,099,000 794,000 8,176,000 | 18,069,000
Effect on DBO due to 0.5% decrease in salary escalation rate | (8,588,000) | (739,000) | (7,623,000) | (16,950,000)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumption constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumption is correlated. When calculating sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period) has been applied while
calculating the defined benefit liability recognized in the balance sheet.
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14.2.4 Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars

For the Year 2080-81

For the Year 2079-80

Financial Assumptions
Discount rate (%)
Salary escalation rate
Future service

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality

Withdrawal rate

8.00%
10.00%

Expected average remaining
working life of the employees based
on withdrawal rate and retirement
age taken as 58 years

In accordance with the standard
table, Nepal Assured Lives Mortality
(2009) (modified) Ultimate Rates

3.50%

9.00%
10.00%

Expected average remaining
working life of the employees based
on withdrawal rate and retirement
age taken as 58 years

In accordance with the standard
table, Nepal Assured Lives Mortality
(2009) (modified) Ultimate Rates

3.50%

14.2.5 Defined Benefit Plan Assets

Defined benefit obligations are not funded and there are no Defined Benefit Plan Assets. The company is in the process
of creating a separate fund for meeting the defined benefit obligation.

14.3 Defined Contribution Plan

The defined contribution expenses include employer's contribution to provident fund. These amounts have been
deposited in Employee Provident Fund, a 100% Government of Nepal undertaking.

14.4 Other Long-Term Benefits — Leave Encashment

Leave encashment has been computed using actuarial assumptions. The assumptions made are the growth rate derived
from the past experience and discounting the long-term obligations at the end of each reporting period. Sick leave of 1.5
times the last drawn monthly basic salary is paid to employee. The maximum accumulation allowed is 30 days.

15. Financial Instruments — Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at amortized cost or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The company’s financial liabilities
include trade payables and borrowings.

Financial liabilities held by the company are both interest bearing and non-interest bearing.

For interest bearing financial liabilities which comprises of the bank loans, interest charged by the bank approximates
effective interest rate and the rate is considered for calculation of amortized cost of liability and the finance cost. The
effect of initial charges and its impact on effective interest rate is considered not material and the carrying value is
considered to approximate the amortized cost.

Risks associated with Financial Instrument- Financial Liabilities

The company has a risk management framework to monitor, access, mitigate and manage risk. The risk management
framework is given in Note 31.
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15.1 Non-Current Borrowings

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad 2081

As at 31st Ashad 2080

Secured Bank Loan
Less: Current Maturity Portion

560,407,009
(560,407,009)

Total

15.2 Current Borrowings

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Bank Overdrafts 477,715,495 1,016,000,972
Secured Bank Loan 912,000,000 -
Current Portion of Term Loan - 560,407,009
Loan from BNL 1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000
Total 2,589,715,495 2,776,407,981

Short term bank overdraft carries interest at the rate 7.2% to 10.65% P.a. during the year and repayable on demand.
Term loan is secured against Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has obtained loan from Bottlers Nepal Limited as per Agreement made on 12th Feb 2018 (Amended on
10th July 2019). Interest on Outstanding Principal amount of loan shall accrue at the interest rate of not less than the
prevailing bank rate (Standard Chartered Bank, Nepal) at the time of payment.

Bank Overdraft are secured against all movable properties/current assets including inventories & trade receivables.

15.3 Trade Payables

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Trade Payable 568,728,285 486,091,935
Trade Payable to related parties 651,718,388 27,601,044
Total 1,220,446,673 513,692,979

16. Lease Liabilities

At the date of commencement, the company has recognized the right of use of assets and corresponding lease liability
at present value of the future lease payment discounted at rate of 10.00% over the lease period. The interest rate has
been assumed to be the effective rate of interest implicit in the lease for the purpose of discounting. Interest expense
accrued on lease liability, being a component of finance cost is presented separately as a charge in the statement of
Profit or Loss.
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Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 | As at 31st Ashad 2080
Opening Balance 100,609,535 118,355,693
Recognition of lease liability 59,531,679 -
Lease modification (2,658,920) -
:\T(t;;ezsifccrued on Lease Liability (Charged to PL - Refer 12,355,564 11,047,615
Actual Lease Payment during the year (28,534,822) (28,793,774)
Total 141,303,035 100,609,534
Current Lease Liability 28,898,240 8,982,437
Non- Current Lease Liabilty 112,404,795 91,627,097

17. Other Financial Liabilities

Figures in NPR

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad 2081

As at 31st Ashad 2080

Container deposit liability
Corporate Social Responsibility
Trade Deposits

Employee related accruals
Bonus Payable

Provision for Expenses
Provision for AR Bad Debts
Statutory dues payable

Interest Payables

VAT Payable (Net)

611,324,782
18,120,675
2,323,600
44,027,659
49,826,584
230,328,974
2,505,891
262,931,975
3,890,296

597,230,947
26,502,947
2,327,100
43,564,164
80,212,325
75,003,468
332,785,166
6,135,350
30,971,444

Total

1,225,280,436

1,194,732,911

Breakup of provision for expenses:

Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080
Provision General 40,115,650 12,419,790
Provision Freight 584,412 628,108
Provision Discount 114,277,958 -
Provision DME 10,788,460 7,323,760
Provision Leakage & BBD 64,562,494 54,631,810
Total 230,328,974 75,003,468

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past event,
it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of obligation. If these conditions are not met, no provision is recognized.
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The amount of provision recognized is the management’s best estimate of expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date.

Corporate Social Responsibility

CSR Provision is accounted as per Industrial Enterprises Act 2020 (2076 BS) (the "Act") has been introduced with
effect from February 11, 2020 superseding the Industrial Enterprises Act 2016 (2073 BS) (the "Previous Act").

Section 54 of Industrial Enterprises Act 2020 (2076 BS) makes it mandatory to allocate 1% of the annual profit to be
utilized towards corporate social responsibility (the “CSR Requirement”).

The fund created for CSR is to be utilized based on annual plans and programs in the sectors that are prescribed under
the Act. The progress report of the utilization of the fund collected for CSR is required to be submitted to the Department
of Industries registered within six months from expiry of the financial year.

The company has provided provision for CSR at the rate of 1 % of profit before tax amounting to NPR 5,032,988 for
FY 2080-81.

Changes in provision

Management reviews provisions at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

18. Other Non-Financial Liabilities
Figures in NPR

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 | As at 31st Ashad 2080
Advance received from distributors 32,421,331 11,526,996
Advance received from Related Parties 37,768,001 99,178
Total 70,189,332 11,626,174
19. Revenue from Operations Figures in NPR
Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Sale of goods 10,385,824,139 10,508,628,544
Less: Discount (1,423,400,312) (1,057,125,506)
Less: Deferred Revenue (191,126,403) (131,468,948)
Total 8,771,297,424 9,320,034,090
Figures in NPR
Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Domestic 10,385,824,139 9,981,222,107
Export - 527,406,437
Total 10,385,824,139 10,508,628,544

19.1 Sale of Goods

The entity has applied NFRS 15- Revenue from Contracts with Customers using the cumulative effect method and
therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under NAS 18 and NAS 11.
The details of accounting policies under NAS 18 and NAS 11 are disclosed separately if they are different from those
under NFRS 15.
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19.2 Significant Accounting Policy

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The entity recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or service
to a customer. In the comparative period, revenue was measured at the fair value of the consideration received. In
the comparative period, revenue was recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured and when
recognition criteria related to sale of goods activities i.e when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have transferred to the buyer, with the Company retaining neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.

19.3 Nature of Goods and Services

The company is engaged in the production, manufacture and sale of soft drinks being carbonated non-alcoholic
beverages under the brand names- Coca-Cola, Sprite and Fanta.

19.4 Timing of Revenue Recognition

Under NFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ the entity recognizes revenue at a point in time when control
of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

19.5 Sales Channel
The entity does not sale goods directly. It sales only through intermediaries. through its distributors.
19.6 Transaction price related to remaining performance obligations

Some of sales made to customers comprise a right of return, trade discounts or volume rebates, incentive, reimbursement
of expense. Currently, the entity recognizes revenue from the sale of goods upon delivery measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. If
revenue cannot be reliably measured, the entity defers revenue recognition until the uncertainty is resolved. Such
provisions give rise to variable consideration under NFRS 15, and will be required to be estimated at contract inception
and updated thereafter.

(i) Rights of return

When a contract with a customer provides a right to return the good within the specified period. However, the
amount of returns being immaterial, the entity currently does not account for the right of return and does not
anticipate significant impact on revenue recognition under the expected value method under NFRS 15. However,
the entity recognizes obligations which may arise due to expiry of products and such obligation is measured based
on previous year trends.

(ii) Volume rebates

The entity provides retrospective volume rebates to its customers on all products purchased by the customer once
the quantity of products purchased and liquidated at secondary level during the period under scheme in force
exceeds a threshold specified in the scheme under constructive obligation as evidenced in sales and marketing
policy of the company.

Under its existing accounting policy, the entity estimates the expected volume rebates using the probability-
weighted average amount of rebates approach and includes them in Trade and other payables. These amounts
may subsequently be repaid in cash to the customer or are offset against amounts payable by customer. Under
NFRS 15, retrospective volume rebates give rise to variable consideration. To estimate the variable consideration
to which it will be entitled, the entity considered that the most likely amount method better predicts the amount of
variable consideration for contracts with only a single volume threshold while for contracts with more than one
volume threshold it would apply either the expected value method or the most likely amount method, depending on
which of them better predicts the amount of variable consideration for the particular type of contract.
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20. Cost of Goods sold

Figures in NPR

Particulars

For the Year 2080-81

For the Year 2079-80

Material consumed

Raw materials

At 1st Shrawan 2080

Purchase

Less: Transfer to/ from Bottlers Nepal Ltd.
At 31st Ashad 2081

979,065,381
5,780,585,255
7,778,571
(1,795,347,091)

825,100,405
5,699,148,321

(58,455,992)
(979,065,381)

Total raw material consumed

4,972,082,116

5,486,727,353

Work in process

At 1st Shrawan 2080 8,287,325 4,769,848
At 31st Ashad 2081 (1,583,790) (8,287,325)
Net change in work-in-process 6,703,535 (3,517,477)

Production and manufacturing overheads
Finished goods

1,519,276,481

1,532,221,274

At 1st Shrawan 2080 321,991,596 266,307,905
At 31st Ashad 2081 (219,278,480) (321,991,596)
Net change in finished goods 102,713,116 (55,683,691)
Cost of goods sold 6,600,775,248 6,959,747,459

20.1 Production and manufacturing overheads

Figures in NPR

Particulars

For the Year 2080-81

For the Year 2079-80

Salaries, wages and other employee cost
Sick Leave*

Gratuity

Other retirement benefits

Travel and transport costs

Repair and maintainence

Office expenses

Consumables

Power & Fuel

Legal and other professional fees
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortization of Intangible Assets

Exchange (Gain)/Loss

451,290,363
2,437,000
18,035,000
27,767,161
6,464,320
181,678,886
26,167,878
59,967,795
164,159,156
8,388,409
537,632,817
14,166,000
21,121,696

470,926,226
(323,402)
25,199,222
25,933,361
10,604,652
171,088,936
24,754,327
75,577,066
213,455,715
4,606,058
502,075,988
7,032,653
1,290,472

Total

1,519,276,481

1,532,221,274

* During Last year the Sick leave expenses has been reversed due to change in discount rate assumption. The
discount rate was increased to 9% last year as compared to 7.5% in previous year, due to which the total liability has
reduced and the excess leave expenses had been reversed in the previous year.
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21. Other Operating Income

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Product transfer fee 14,488,202 63,850,064
Sale of Scrap 16,770,688 16,512,849
Miscellaneous Income 581,630 559,950
Total 31,840,520 80,922,863

21.1. Product Transfer Fee

The Company and Bottlers Nepal Ltd, its holding Company, can sell their products in their respective market territories
only. In respect of sales made by the Company and its subsidiary, in market territory of the other Company, a product
transfer fee (gross) at the rate of 12 % (Previous year 12 %) of net liquid sales revenue is recovered/ paid. Product
transfer service fee is recognized/ charged to income statement as and when sale of goods is affected as per above

clause.

21.2 Sale of Scrap

ltems includes under this income are towards sale amount realized from sale of scraps.

21.3 Miscellaneous Income

Miscellaneous income includes charges recovered from customer on account of handling loss of Glass bottles,
Container deposit liability Write-off amount and liquidated damages received from vendor.

The company generates revenue from sale of goods in the ordinary course of business.

22. Selling and Distribution Expenses

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 | For the Year 2079-80
Salaries, wages and other employee cost 207,912,684 210,637,267
Sick Leave* 482,000 (227,385)
Gratuity 3,186,000 5,590,689
Other retirement benefits 1,507,075 7,242,751
Travel and transport costs 35,610,938 58,419,387
Repair and maintainence 28,948,172 27,260,801
Office expenses 18,626,575 17,620,395
Communication expenses 34,506,794 29,579,661
Utilities 18,230,241 32,770,214
Freight Charges 568,711,044 568,087,107
Liquid leakages and damages 2,789,135 -
Sales promotion expenses 59,431,708 37,217,689
Other miscellaneous expenses 781,076 456,800
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 93,919,579 87,708,123
Amortization of Intangible Assets 33,459 16,611
Loss on sale/write off of Property plant equipment (net) (3,306,786) (10,678,739)
Product transfer fees 209,169,238 163,205,976
Total 1,280,538,932 1,234,907,347

* During Last year the Sick leave expenses has been reversed due to change in discount rate assumption. The
discount rate was increased to 9% last year as compared to 7.5% in previous year, due to which the total liability has
reduced and the excess leave expenses had been reversed in the previous year.
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23. Administrative and Operating expenses

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Salaries, wages and other employee cost 80,397,343 63,417,600
Sick Leave* 448,000 (76,213)
Gratuity 1,729,000 3,410,180
Other retirement benefits 2,033,094 1,978,888
Travel and transport costs 3,846,533 6,310,198
Repair and maintainence 7,553,740 7,113,437
Office expenses 28,083,993 26,566,937
Bank charges 2,369,729 2,951,795
Audit fees 450,000 450,000
Legal and other professional fees 1,389,839 1,405,551
Communication expenses 35,255,482 30,221,446
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 13,706,436 12,799,949
Amortization of Intangible Assets 663,289 329,287
Corporate Social Responsibility 5,032,988 7,219,109
Security Expenses 16,922,766 15,877,974
Board and AGM expenses 600,000 375,000
Other miscellaneous expenses 231,824 150,000
Total 200,714,056 180,501,138

* During Last year the Sick leave expenses has been reversed due to change in discount rate assumption. The
discount rate was increased to 9% last year as compared to 7.5% in previous year, due to which the total liability has
reduced and the excess leave expenses had been reversed in the previous year.

23.1 Audit Fees Disclosure

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Statutory Audit Fees 450,000 450,000
Total 450,000 450,000

24. Finance Cost

Finance costs comprises of interest on Term Loan and interest on short term borrowings in the form of bank overdrafts.
All these costs are carried at amortized cost using effective interest rate as required by NFRS.

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Interest on Term Loan 16,150,942 100,478,175
Interest on Overdraft 140,915,755 90,280,918
Interest on Inter Company Loan 103,448,777 114,049,521
Interest on Lease Liabilities 12,355,564 11,047,615
Total 272,871,038 315,856,229

* Interest on Lease Liabilities has been recognized with adoption of NFRS 16 “Leases’.
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25. Finance Income

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80
Interest income 200,571 4,747,023
Total 200,571 4,747,023

25.1 Interest Income

Interest income has been recognized using effective interest method as required by NFRS.

26. Earnings Per Share

Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 | For the Year 2079-80
Numerator
Profit for the year and earnings used in basic EPS 339,681,626 638,831,360
Denominator
Weighted average number of shares used in basic EPS 1,210,000 1,210,000
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share 281 528

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the company for the period by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares. Number of shares have not changed over the reported periods. There are no potential ordinary shares
that would dilute basic earnings per share, hence diluted EPS is same as basic EPS.

27. Dividend Paid and Proposed Figures in NPR

Particulars For the Year 2080-81 For the Year 2079-80

Declared and paid during the year:

Dividends on ordinary shares: 72,600,000

Final Dividend for 2079-80: Rs.60 per share
Final Dividend for 2078-79: Rs 60 Per Share 72,600,000

Proposed for approval at the annual general meeting (not
recognised as a liability as at balance sheet date):

Dividends on ordinary shares:
2080-81: Rs 50 per Share
2079-80: Rs 60 per Share

60,500,000 -
72,600,000

28. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment
28.1 Contingent Liabilities

Possible obligation, arising from past events and whose existence will be confirmed upon uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the company and present obligation arising from past events with least probability of
payment or the amount cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are disclosed as contingent liability.

28.1.1 Bank Guarantee

Bank Guarantee has been provided to the Department of Customs for obtaining EXIM Code. As at the reporting date
the guaranteed amount is NPR 300,000.

Other bank guarantee has been provided to customs department regarding import of goods amounting to NPR
45,000,000.
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28.1.2 Corporate Tax Matters

i) LTO assessed the income tax, TDS and VAT liabilities of the company for the year 2069-70. For the unaccepted
amount, the company has filed the case for Administrative Review Tribunal. Pending decision from the Director
General, additional liability has not been recognized in the financial statements and is disclosed as contingent
liabilities as below:

Figures in NPR

Particulars Additional Accepted Appeal against Estimated Interest Liabilities
Demand amount demand Upto Balance Sheet Date
TDS 75,154,450 123,929 75,030,521 11,227,287
Total 75,154,450 123,929 75,030,521 11,227,287

i) LTO assessed the income tax, TDS and VAT liabilities of the company for the year 2070-71. For the unaccepted
amount, the company has filed the case at Revenue Tribunal. Pending decision from the tribunal, additional
liability has not been recognized in the financial statements and is disclosed as contingent liabilities as below:

Figures in NPR

Particulars Additional Accepted Appeal against Estimated Interest Liabilities
Demand Amount demand Upto Balance Sheet Date

Income-Tax 47,213,938 22,776,663 24,437,275 21,566,625

TDS 9,238,997 483,000 8,755,997 7,876

VAT 35,661,144 2,109,057 33,552,087 -

Total 92,114,079 25,368,720 66,745,359 21,574,501

ii)

LTO assessed the income tax, TDS and VAT liabilities of the company for the year 2071-72. For the unaccepted
amount, the company has filed the case for Administrative Review Tribunal. Pending decision from the Director
General, additional liability has not been recognized in the financial statements and is disclosed as contingent
liabilities as below: . .
Figures in NPR

Particulars Additional Accepted Appeal against Estimated Interest Liabilities
Demand amount demand Upto Balance Sheet Date

Income-Tax 159,844,396 5,254,246 154,590,150 33,580,653

TDS 68,550,836 24,213 68,526,623 11,034,926

VAT 43,900,619 4,895,328 39,005,291 5,947,334

Total 272,295,851 10,173,787 262,122,064 50,562,913

LTO assessed the income tax, TDS and VAT liabilities of the company for the year 2072-73. For the unaccepted
amount, the company has filed the case for Administrative Review Tribunal. Pending decision from the Director
General, additional liability has not been recognized in the financial statements and is disclosed as contingent
liabilities as below:

Figures in NPR

Particulars Additional Accepted Appeal against Estimated Interest Liabilities
Demand amount demand Upto Balance Sheet Date
Income-Tax 85,849,957 593,328 85,256,629 8,793,788
TDS 71,517,670 - 71,517,670 7,526,138
VAT 38,289,325 1,202,613 37,086,712 3,894,853
Total 195,656,952 1,795,941 193,861,011 20,214,779

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 85

ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited
Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes
For the Year Ended 315t Ashad, 2081 (15" July 2024)

v) LTO assessed the income tax, TDS and VAT liabilities of the company for the year 2073-74. For the unaccepted
amount, the company has filed the case for Administrative Review Tribunal. Pending decision from the Director
General, additional liability has not been recognized in the financial statements and is disclosed as contingent

liabilities as below: . .
Figures in NPR

Particulars Additional Accepted Appeal against | Estimated Interest Liabilities
Demand amount demand Upto Balance Sheet Date

Income-Tax 123,252,989 2,554,060 120,698,929 10,518,351

TDS 93,547,558 - 93,547,558 7,869,324

VAT 1,354,914 1,190,834 164,080 36,757

Total 218,155,462 3,744,894 214,410,567 18,424,432

Grand total 853,376,793 41,207,271 812,169,522 122,003,912

28.2 Commitment

A commitment is a contractual obligation to make a payment in the future, mainly in relation to leases and agreements
to buy assets. These amounts are not recorded in the statement of financial position since the company has not yet
received the goods or services from the supplier. The amounts below are the minimum amounts that we are committed
to pay.

At end of financial year 2080/81, the Company had capital commitments of NPR 20,569,284 (Previous Year 2079/80
NPR 29,648,257) relating to various small projects.
29. Interim Reporting

Interim reports have been publicly reported in accordance with the requirement of SEBON and NEPSE. These
requirements are materially aligned with the requirements of NAS 34.

30. Segment Reporting

The Company has only one “business segment” i.e. dealing in “non-alcoholic beverage”. The non-alcoholic beverage
business mainly consists of products like carbonated soft drinks in different flavors. All these products have similar
risks and returns because of similar nature of products, common consumer segments, similar production processes
and common distribution channel. Further, internal organizational and management structure and its system of internal
financial reporting of the Company is not based on product or geographical differentiation.

31. Related Party Transactions
31.1 Relationship

The company identified related parties on the following lines
1. Part of the Group
a. Parent company, ultimate parent
b. Other Subsidiaries of the parent / ultimate parent
c. Subsidiaries of the company
2. Directors and their relatives
Key management personnel and their relatives

31.1.1 Transactions with Directors & Key Management Personnel

During the year neither any directors nor any key management personnel nor any associate or family member (relative)
of the directors and key management personnel was indebted to the company. There have been no material transactions
or proposed transactions with directors and key management personnel or their relatives and associates except for the
compensations and/or remuneration paid under the company’s regulations.
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FY 2080-81 Figures in NPR
Particulars Remuneration Fees Facilities Total
Director's Fees & Facilities - 600,000 - 600,000
Total - 600,000 - 600,000
FY 2079-80 Figures in NPR
Particulars Remuneration Fees Facilities Total
Director's Fees & Facilities - 375,000 - 375,000
Total - 375,000 - 375,000

Additional Information

a)
i)
ii)
iii)

b)
to key management personnel.

31.2 Other Related Party Transaction and Balances

Furnished apartments are provided to all expatriate staffs.

Key management personnel are also provided with following benefits:
All Manager of the Company are provided vehicle allowance as per Company Policy

Performance bonus based on individual, Division, and overall Country performance.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognized as an expense during the reporting period related

Figures in NPR

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the year 2080-81

For the year 2079-80

Sale to related parties:

Sale of various materials to Bottlers Nepal Limited (at cost)
Purchases from related parties:

Purchase of various materials from Bottlers Nepal Limited (at Cost)
Purchase of Concentrate from Pacific Refreshments Pte. Ltd.
Product transfer fee:

Received from Bottlers Nepal Limited

Paid to Bottlers Nepal Limited

Management Fee Paid to Bottlers Nepal Limited

Rent paid to Bottlers Nepal Limited

Interest paid to Bottlers Nepal Ltd on loan

Purchase of Asset (Containers) from Bottlers Nepal Ltd. (at WDV)
Amounts owed by Related Parties:

Bottlers Nepal Limited - Parent company

Pacific Refreshments Pte. Ltd. - other related party
Amounts owed to related parties:

Bottlers Nepal Limited - Parent company

Hindustan CCBPL

Pacific Refreshments Pte Ltd. - Other related party

Coca Cola Asia Pacific

Coca Cola Bottlers(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

Refreshment Product Service

607,761

8,386,331
2,994,258,532

14,488,202
209,169,238
177,733,306

578,130
103,448,777
3,601,119

7,106,422

37,768,000
618,630,644

17,764,949
10,055,084

90,947,819

32,491,827
2,501,904,244

63,850,064
163,205,976
162,149,822

559,950
114,049,521
11,001

11,098,788

619,104
99,177
5,267,711
17,666,000
4,667,333
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been
no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

32. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company'’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets
comprise trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

32.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market prices comprise four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and
other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings
and deposits.

32.1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s bank overdraft and short-term deposits.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by negotiating with highly reputed commercial banks.
32.1.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from
the Company’s functional currency).

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by not holding the receivables and payables in foreign currencies for
longer duration.

32.1.3 Commodity price risk

The Company is affected by the volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the ongoing purchase
of raw materials and therefore require a continuous supply of the same.

The Company manages this risk by purchasing materials and supplies from the supplier identified by the group and the
Company has long term relation with the supplier.

32.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

32.2.1 Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is assessed, and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment.

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and shipments to major customers are generally covered
by bank guarantees.
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32.2.2 Cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions are managed by maintaining the balances with highly
reputed Commercial banks only.

32.3 Liquidity Risk
The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds on a regular basis through cash forecast.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. Access to sources of funding is sufficient.

32.4 Risk Management Framework

Contractual maturities of undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and financial liabilities are provided below.

FY 2080-81 Figures in NPR
Particulars Within 1 Year 1-5 Years More than No sta.ted Total

5 Years Maturity
Financial Assets:
Advances to Employees 4,137,080 5,138,557 - - 9,275,637
Security Deposits - - - 103,884 103,884
Duty Refundable 17,164,787 - - - 17,164,787
Other Receivbales 1,053,155 - - - 1,053,155
Trade Receivables 923,384,395 - - - 923,384,395
LC Margin Receivables 44,220,768 - - - 44,220,768
Cash and Cash Equivalents 20,095,880 - - - 20,095,880
Total 1,010,056,065 5,138,557 - 103,884 | 1,015,298,506
Financial Liabilities:
Bank overdrafts - - - 477,715,495 477,715,495
Loan from BNL 1,200,000,000 - - -| 1,200,000,000
Secured Bank Loan 912,000,000 - - - 912,000,000
Trade Payable 1,220,446,673 - - -1 1,220,446,673
Container deposit liability - - - 611,324,782 611,324,782
Corporate Social _
Responsibility 18,120,675 - - 18,120,675
Trade Deposits - - - 2,323,600 2,323,600
Employee related accruals 44,027,659 - - - 44,027,659
Lease Liabilities 28,898,240 112,404,795 - - 141,303,035
Bonus Payable 49,826,584 - - - 49,826,584
Provision for Expenses 230,328,974 - - - 230,328,974
Stautory dues payable 262,931,975 - - - 262,931,975
Interest payables 3,890,296 - - - 3,890,296
Gratuity 35,514,000 - - 215,443,000 250,957,000
Leave Encashment 1,600,000 - - 16,691,000 18,291,000
Other Retirement Benefits 14,391,000 - - 181,397,800 195,788,800
Total 4,021,976,076 112,404,795 -1 1,504,895,677 | 5,639,276,548

Net Financial Assets

| (3,011,920,010) | (107,266,239) |

-| (1,504,791,793) | (4,623,978,042) |
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FY 2079-80 Figures in NPR
Particulars Within 1 Year 15Years | Morethan No stated Total
5 Years Maturity
Financial Assets:
Advances to Employees 7,020,589 1,733,078 - 8,753,667
Security Deposits - - 142,320 142,320
Short Term Deposits 56,109,914 - - 56,109,914
Other Receivbales 39,256 - - 39,256
Trade Receivables 430,985,174 - - 430,985,174
LC Margin Receivables 17,592,811 - - 17,592,811
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19,029,812 - - 19,029,812
Total 530,777,556 1,733,078 142,320 532,652,954
Financial Liabilities:
Bank overdrafts - - 1,016,000,972 | 1,016,000,972
Loan from BNL 1,200,000,000 - -1 1,200,000,000
Secured Bank Loan 560,407,009 - 560,407,009
Trade Payable 513,692,981 - - 513,692,981
Container deposit liability - - 597,230,947 597,230,947
Corporate Social
Responsibility 26,502,947 - - 26,502,947
Trade Deposits - - 2,327,100 2,327,100
Employee related accruals 43,564,164 - - 43,564,164
Lease Liabilities 8,982,437 91,627,097 - 100,609,534 -
Bonus Payable 80,212,325 - - 80,212,325 [ |
Provision for Expenses 75,003,468 - - 75,003,468 5
Stautory dues payable 332,785,166 - - 332,785,166 !
Interest payables 6,135,350 - - 6,135,350 b4
VAT Payable (Net) 30,971,444 - - 30,971,444
Gratuity 43,072,000 - 250,725,000 293,797,000
Leave Encashment 1,607,000 - 16,236,000 17,843,000
Other Retirement Benefits 17,724,000 - 189,453,470 207,177,470
Total 2,940,660,291 91,627,097 2,071,973,489 | 5,104,260,877
Net Financial Assets (2,409,882,735) | (89,894,019) | - | (2,071,831,169) | (4,571,607,923) |
As per our attached

Narmadeshwar Narayan Singh
Chairman

Gunjan Dhawan
Director

Pramod Kumar Karki
Independent Director

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

For & on behalf of the Board report of even date

Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan Lukas Zapletal Sumitra Rijal
Chief Executive Officer Director Partner
PKF T. R. Upadhya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Shalini Ratwatee Ajay Kumar Shrestha
Director Director

Redwin Antonio Duay
Country Finance Director

Date: 5th Mangsir, 2081 (20th November, 2024)
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10 NEPALI TRANSLATION

10-Bijuli bazar

. Y 19tes Kathmandu, Nepal
Rumba Associates e
Chartered Accountants runiba.acaf@gmail.com

2024.11.25

To,

The Management

Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited

Balaju Industrial District, Balaju, Kathmandu, Nepal

Subject: Submission of Translated Financial Statement of FY 2080/81

Dear Sir/Madam,

We are pleased to submit the translated financial statement of Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited for the
fiscal vear 2080/81.

The translation has been prepared to align with the original financial statements, ensuring clarity and
accuracy for relevant stakeholders. However, please note that while we have taken utmost care to ensure
accuracy during the translation process, we accept no further obligation in the event of any
inconsistencies between the translated and original financial statements.

Should you have any queries or require further assistance, please feel free to contact us.

We appreciate the opportunity to assist Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited and look forward to your
acknowledgme njs-submission.

Yours faithil
CA Milan Ru
Principal

Rumba Associates, Chartered Accountants
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% forbTaeTe THIT T T AP AN GHH AAAEE TAGT T BTILIAATS I
fa=gl | e & 9T gepReRT AT ITATEHBT AT STT-Fewefierdn Hifd (Zero-Tolerance

Policy) HIATSEl T BTHT FHARIEEATS el T JehTehl IUTSHEE SRS A ATITH
FH Forgd Iul wqHT gfaeg o |

TG Jqagarars 9 q3E aATSH, THI BTIEIeHT FRARITHT ATH FeIed AHATH TH,R09% (R0%) T
AT e A9 Icdred At 2099 fedwar @ A Fat=as W a2t |

T e ¥ TEEa® qigars Greared T4 8TEl MReR Jiqagard gt FHEnT 2

.

TGS oIhl ARAATH Hecaqul SITHFT Gefel 3, |

O T AT eTHIA AAtaa Ifqafte (Feedback) T9T THFRIHE SARAREAs SIS
f \ fauz &THT YReTe SHERATIT YR ATEweTs gE T ATUH G | AT FeaehIuret fFTrar FuTeHT
FERfeTs JagaT TEg, |

qqca fahrE: g FGTSAHT A Aqcaee die=a I GeTave I faiq= qqca faema srashdeed
ORI TTAT T TUHT G | THT MGt T Fqcd HACTKAT T T FFIATER ATHBTATT TheAqTATS
it Ty |

A AT T qlg (AT 61 AT FeMdT 2retie (g faamesd T fer AT orard afe=rs 19 T ated
TRTETOT FTAFHAEE oA T Gehrd Tl B | 99 FYHT, ETHIA FHATIEEH] T [Thbraarg 97 quaT
TS T ATSIH ATAeeals Al TEHATT IATSH $-Ag WIHHES TANT TLH T |

ATEAHHT BTHIG AT FHARIGEHT BTTHTAT T4 T ETHI HFIAIH] Tdcd, H ATIAIES,
7 fafiTee HEpfqems IHTEdRT FTHT TYU T T G3E ASTIRETAT Fiegs I e
IR FITAT FITHT HEANT AT Tad, X SHAH TR ATH THITFAER TFI=IeTs Ii
e TS, |
TT FY, ETHI "91ed (Thrive) " ATHHIU T TAT GITAT I (Talent Philosophy) ¥ FHARI Hed &
(Employee Value Proposition) Y&d Tt | T T8t BTHT FHATIE%H! THig ¥ q1g [Tpraers qwere T farm
U] &7 | 9123 (Thrive) TR T ATIRETFAEEHT MHT B afg, THig, ATI7cE, T I97 | AT ATIRETFIe o
AT ¥ AEANTF [ThTaeATs GIcdTed 9, TGISATTT ATHIIAAT T TehaTeh! STaAT [abr T4, T FEwHr
HAYU] TATT ITH BTHT FiqagaTers THES | Thrive o BTHT FHET T HFIAIH ATHIETATS AT THS FoId T
feaTT forepT® FHTaRer I 8THT Jiasers aHd e, |

ET AT a9 050159 AT AT JiqT 399 ¥ FHART Hed YEATadTe 747 SATSHT qAT3T Thd TUH G |
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FHAWT HAT ETHT AT T ARAATDT ATA T & A= HFIATR HAAT Lhl B |
T a9 RN, WATEE T TS Bed[IelS Geral (o Jevad HF-H 3¢ Tgdes

q& 9T |
WA Earee: AR T qEIE Ty
S X%

ETHT A QTR BT A TN ATgred ETHI FHFIAA FhRTHE
ERIATE TG T ATHE Th WEHE JIR T HAIAR GEhRATS Jecd (67,
ATRT T T qgeel T FUATEEHT HAEE el FHARIESS ATHT FEhHT
FAFHHEE JaH Ta AEAF] AHITATS T T FAEITIHATE =B H ATHA
ATUeRT T, STE T, TVH T | Ih WIEHHAA BT T | BTHI GAT-gIR ATferers
W A1, T BRI FATITHRT TeABTHIEEDT qreaTied TSl ¥ et Teeehadl

FAES | TIAT RIAL FATES ¥ fawT S AATSS’ AR
ATATHRAT ¥l FRAFHAGTHT  Gfe=TT 9T FRAEAT T HEBIAehl

TE I e, | fereprr Tt |
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TUTEAR, ¥, T &
FHl FHAT faeaeiE ATIiq HEdrl qRia
AT grg, oM@l (UER, W HREl, SATdnd
LI B - | I | 1 R P B E R | SR DA [P i
AALTF Fregl |

ISO HFEITIT GUMTCATehl  H9Thl FTTHT Igehl FARAA
TAT [T Jomelr ATI8Uge%: 1ISO 9001:2015 IUTEAT
FATITIA JUTel, ISO 14001:2015 ATATARTT HFLATIAH
JUTE!, FSSC 22000 HERIW 6.0 @M FRET JUITedl
THTOTTS T 1SO 45001:2018 SATAHTIF T T &
AT JUTATESHT  FFIAT qhAdTgdsd  =aRae
JUTET HTIGUSE&HT THTITT T T G |

BOTTLERS NEFAL LMITED

]

o
c
2
Il
o
=
i
@
o
5

ETT ETHT A 4 HTIeeH TRET qfear FEpiaeH
HIIAT TC | AT JOMTHT AT Te<ed] GRET qTde=aT
I YTATHEBATAT AT T | BT ATH] AT
T T GRET TUITATEATS FR=” qge T4 (1w SuTaee
qIAFT TWH B, THHI FAGEH qaAAT SATraH
HATSHA, H1I IRIE0EE, T qHEigd FHANES T

TR g | HFIA AT GRET SAa=TI JOMed AT

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

ISR 3MTPIUHT AT Taw, TAAT HIRA (STHEHeRT
afe= T HATSHT) AT IH@R, ¥ R

LTI FHTALT TRUH G | THBT AT ech, FFIAT
qI FHANEE T SHAREEH TREATHl GAre=edre
AT S s=e fHaweTedr wecawr wie f4T e
B | FEAA AT G GEFHIEEATs FIHFT Tl
IR ATEATEF T AR GREATHE IJTFIUET
EHERIEE

ESRETHl Wl FAFRA ARG FIRH  AAST
FAFATAR]  HEAT T AqATs IR TR
AN ST UBege AeY Al HagRAT AT
T (BBS) @N] TXH T | TGP LT I TEHT

uuuuuu

DOTTLERS NEPAL LIMITED

¢ (o

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
CERTIFICATE

FHANEEH] eI F@rad ¥ IETHT FEX 9T
ZEAERETHT YATHAT G&TH T &l | SFERAT AT
AT (BBS) (MW e T WA TG AT EXH
TeFUEears & ORI Foid RIS e TR
TATHT TR faeardy fae gfea s |

O qHEAT H AT BNAA A ILYAA, HEIA
AT YT ¥ FTAETAHT FHAGEEH AT FEATHTAT
AThT &Td ¥ GETHl Aladadh A AT Higd T
T | B T AT GHb3 A TAGH TF,
ST ATE, SEA( FEed [MIHes ¥ hd € T
FHAARTA AT ATAES G ATATTHR B, TS
AT AT FALITHT IR T ANTE T |

ATILUT

ARTHAS fabrd ¥ faiaar @A 9o Aty e e
HAIRUTATS  FEIATHRl HTd  FoTATH g TeTHT
THdEag TRUR G | ETHT IAEART TIASEHT aTHT
JTeBfTeF HTdewad! ITARIATR T4 qaR T8 T el

c c S S o (SN =~ O]
HIAATR Tdgd < debleUh ollbl TANT del3adl |
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S ARGH ATEIIA, T JTANTATR] FEATHT G,

IYANT T JIfee FUAROTATR T 39 IRl Jcard

FER THHl JI9R, T EHl IARE SRR HATh
FHA T YHTHT bl TRETE T ¥ 2Tl

A TIATAEAT fagvg | I~ BIRRATS ATIITH
T AATIANTF RIERHAT TR v, | ATadITF

frataa TiatalaaT AT TRUE B | ATdRE T T
TP BT FIAAT AT T BFIRT AT TREHAT
T3l HASA FETIA &< (Effluent Treatment Plant)
P AT bl B, AT Ul THSHT I~ higlR
HIATE ARUTAHTR] TAHT BIgd AT TedT T |
T GG TRURT qTHTATE AT IRGRITT FTERT
TRTEH FUEHH 9. TN TG | FHFA TG0
1T AT HefoTe AawaTd Jfaar TUHl T qT
TeE B | TIATS TR T AT HTLIT dISare
I=F AT TRUHT 3 |

FATST TR T TR @ | Febl JTAHT T I
TART T Afeh ATHAES TART Taid T AR T A
T ATAAesH] ICARATTH  HFA  ATATERII
THTAATS ELT TH ATy ATHUATR TIHART T
TALNEITHT SIS [SUHT G | FFIATA HAGA ‘ST BlER
LTI YUl AR ] ) | STHAT G ATTbTH

RERATS TTTIAE AT T2 I AATAANIH
RERATS TERATE WIEHdl I HER AT
TeATes TR .37 T st wieeg |

Sl ITANIAT ¥ FHET TART ETHT IATEA TR AT
A= ST g, STEl BTl BRa a1 TaAreud el
ATAHATE  WATEhl AT ATEeTH ol AT
HecaTHelT qees (aR el | FEIE ghers Ta47
gfafug®Ar @ T A el g4R, F@Ee HHA
SEAT I UEEE AR S T4 ATTH G |

fasTaT smeaTivd ded ITHIORT FANT TN FFIAI
IRaTES, AELIHRATES, I0MENGE AT T THE
EEALTEEH] EATMIa® TIAT TWH G | STae
FATE (A OATRT IEYd ATAE dig oA
TETaTATE ST USTUST e =IATHT T STAh! FE
TEAT 030 H ALAET d® HME T TGS
QAfHATHT @R AR GERHTRT e
ATATARHT AT TR g famarars qf=ra T @ |

BOTTLERS NEPAL LIMITED
WORLD FOOD SAFETY DAY




TF T@a GATIHD] EOTaHT, FAER, qREiar ¥ Sarhdfgamarg qrafasdn
f qumem g fFn g1 akE w 0d ndg | adwfy, afafad gwn fotoee
T RUTULHREE ¥ AURLATARERT Jrefawrei e faediweat o wit glafaa
TH AT AT FH ORH B | g A Adeawy dewfa, afear Sitaw
aeqmd, ¥ e guw T ufaag Y, Rl dedma gmeds Swead
HUEUEEE T TBF T SAAT T aHIddiged gl 71y T@! favamea aqm

AT FAA TEHY |

fer g fasr W @dr
THRATATE TR AeTrpIeeTs
AT THHT AT =T FEINT
FIMHAHT AATHEE AT Te bl
FFIAR AT EH B | SIEH
T AAERETH] AT T qAqT
TFRATATEEHI fqearaars Hraq
EAHT ATV FEITTT AT TR
BT Glqagare He AT Gelehl
B | BT TG FEATTT T,
VAT ¥ YPRATETATS HoTad aATse
AT |

oA atafd

AATIHT SrUFTAA W T T
IHAAT AT AT wAEdrs
R 79 29T AR gIRT
FoATAE FAIqH! Il T, |

STl I AaAThl fger, yae
qaT  ATHREET  TRAITR T

gl eIl

o7 THIYER AR fq98

A AR A=A
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HERr FFAR geardas
gfafaar Wfea @ | FFAE
AT FSATAAHR! AR
R I e A I
TG FAFET AfdERd (CEO) @
IR T8 | THE HTIFERT Afrede
FEAIR] FFLATIT ATATTHT T
TE, @A faarig gaEes
TP TTH] TG STl FFIATH
e fafafaessr  saearITeTs
Prarefie amrsT iAaer gw@a |
qIEAMF FAlha FFAAETRT AT
quE T aeaeet fadfra,
09¥

e difpusaed  F=ards®
afafqer  ®Fer FeEsr FOET
FERT AT YITAT THATS ATITAA
APl FIHT IR TR
B | HEAC AT de A9

(SEBON) o fAgiRur el gi=m
ATAR AT 4. 3050/59 HI ATMUE
TN e gfqaed qaR T
9T TR T |

G TATERT IBEIRE
FTOAT HMF IHET T v
FAIR  [AIETECRr T
T goaTades qiAfad Feares
afafdqer Ted gwg | HeATARES
T AAA  FoATAE  (ATAAE

SRR gfdtatae |l
qiFfad 99 FETEAR ARAATATS
afafder Iah ATH B | Frafad
qufcaerordr qega: safawr faare
TH 9 (A1) TSI qAT 9 (TH) T9@
FAFRT ATEHAR FTTAT TUAR
FUGEd WAl | AATTH TR
T [qazr afed afafqar gaer

TR ¢

afafear g R fafa FFIHHT IIYOT TR UL EEHT

F-FHFR Seue
3,000 $AR HThHA G I T ,000
H q0, 033 IR ATHAT ATTERBT TR/ ATTAH
T AT Fiarra
TR-FEER gsaraFeT
H 90, 3033 e AT fAtaager gfafdfa
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aw
ot anfesir Teare
ofT T g

>

T qeeg faerare (dsteas fHeere:
ST AT q)

A AT AR S

ST THIE FHAT FTohl

afafasr S

fgfaer FEITRT fafae
FREARET  [AUIHT FARA  qdl
frorr = e s S
ATASTAT T, | ATHTTRT TSehehl
JIAT U GoATAFETATS ATH
TIE RS | A% ATATSIATR
fafqamr =1 Qo) fam wfgr ¥
TSUET ¥ AT T FRTATAES
faazor Tives, i TSUETAT AT
7 AfFT gAwa ARG fAuE T
afEar | Fueiker  FHTer Tl
afafqer FE@Eedl ®F T (%)

TEFEE  ATASIAT  TRUHT 4T |

W F=aATdF JrAtd

00%

ToATAFRT (TOOAT T &THAT

aftfaar yaw et ffa FFOAAT GOT TRGHRT FAT de

LT 95, 0¥ el 9T fataageat gfarafa
qreaFaY 33, 09% ey Jure fatregawr gfafafa
S R, J0%3 Arcad AT feAtaeg et gtamt
9,494 97X AT gROT Tl T
AT 99, 033 ¥ 595 AT FEITH] qhare/ ATasi—h
SIRAIESH glarafaca
(CRECRIETIRED
fedr=r 93, R09%
(q: R wifewetr fafa: -
STHER 93, R03R3)

F UM q% ASF BT ATTHAH
FA A AiEATRl  ATIHAH
qATIIFAET ot |

afafasr wearsw

AT FEA  AqATAT T
frafereRr, R00¥  FH  ATIYIHAT
qed A s, SEA
qafaer ATRAT  THTARRIATH]
QIR THH fAfaa A et
HATGH TEG | FFIATA ATATTRT
TATgHT  aqdls AT SIAT
U= TRl foar, AT aiataer

— SiEed AU (@) fafrdg® At Jugeh asataE afufaat Tod

A o@T qrafa

Q00%

0% /50 HT SARGHIESATS &, 9% Il AT fadeor

THY HATGHA TAT FooATARE b
ATCH-HATSHA  FHEL  TRTH
fot | 79 AR AT G
TR o | HATEHT TR o
gfgfqer  wraTaTHEr  fataer
JLTEeATs [HATed T AT, SEd
afafde FaEe®Rar qar, qrafaes
YEIH, FaATAs JrATd FEH 9F
aifs | ATRITd GSATARETh
AEEE, S, I ieredr  Srer
HIIGUSEEHT ATCH-TReTET
TvuRr BT | geaTdeEEEr AT
R0R¥ S[@TE & A ATE TR
arfery IHT T TRURT 937 |

T FoATeAehebl "dcd

3 wfafmer 9

AR RO ST i e | B SAFEE] OGS ARG T quT e eaeg
. g TR YAATCHSE AT T&TH THeHT AN TATT IIes:
. o - L\ IO EITR OISR O\ TR AT

o JgYT&hd [dHIIhl GHATT i

SRR il e @ q-ToAIqe fasar
o [aUIYATHl Yiqegdr qgr @TATSS - B h

HETEEH! [TFETa® JHT S N — FFIATR] AT/
o TAYACAH A @ ?ﬁwaﬁaﬁw IR AT ST
o IHAHB THIUI T L ) Ny -
o HEINA QUEHEH ATAYTRAT AT %h WReHaR! T e/ THTE FEE

AVATH G S ARIBTEHT AT
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q5ATAF QAT AridaT AR
ATATTEsd FFIAB] GAMEA FIEATAT Hecd 0 [HHT Mae TH S | qoaras dAtad H¥Id Jois
Tiatatae! HeATgHhd T draaer qraiq Te7 Tebl 3 |

.

qiwe faaa

T a

IRl ATAE faaird =07 gomretr ¥ Sifad
SATEITIA JUTCATRT TARTACATRA T,

FFIAH] ATk @l qRIET0 Iictaiep! Garaero
T qATAaArET T,

FEAIH] A@TAETHHR (ARl AT FrATraT
J@IIRIETHRRl AT fawifE T, SEradreTder
qTfesAtaes ¥ fIhieT oTd qaT svasies (MeR T+
T AR TSFAT AFATE ATHIGHH] AT I
1,

FHATR AGINTHAS  TATAd  HIAT THIAHA
g e fHaRer et R gear,
HYEUE qIT [HERTHRETHT qTeAAT TRehl JEIear
[HRTET0T T HALTaaT 14,

g HEA STHIH qeedd e AR
TWH AR Gledl, HUeve qar AeiThess
ATITRAT BT JGTALNETReT (fh T TrIch!
FFIATR] TGT HET Aqes TaR T ¥ fqresdr
HEATEIA T /RIS,

w4 frame e FEEem oEr whE
GiAaaHT ST @l qeeor qiqaad qar
THIH ST Wl A & Jiqded qar
THHT AT ATILAF e TR I,

FHAIRT @, O aeam= T @l TRIeTuTehT
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?o:o/?:ﬁmwaw:?e
Tadeadar : 3 HT 3

Wmm:

79 AiATTT FFATR I giqeaedes,
ATARE FIAT JUTAEs, T AT oAGTH
Tfafafaese Tearge T TR 9RTes |
AT FTATTHT TSHEFT FIAATEIHT STAEE
(Terms of Reference) ﬁTﬂTﬂ_’%TTT o

o HEAMFN @AT ¥ fadrd  faEruEEm
qRTEATR T T AT faeuesHr Sfedrad
qIETH ATEATTRAT FAR=T T,

FrEIH] F=oATAF FTATT ATl A7 A8 WA
T,

@l qERAT @Tal, o@T Ie giaqded, areerd
a1 fadia faaruesare y=afad ®EAT qEd
qqr fAauaerT MeragrRT Ar aiRusr e
a1 el Haw ¥ falruweaEr wEw @
FEIATH] [T [qaRUTEseh! TARTaw e T AT
Sfeafad faazuressr qumorer acq aex afeT T,
AT Gl TEATH I TATTRRT T Wq
TaATA JaTe TR FAT=ra T,

@rar, eI, T AT (a0 YUTes Sqaiead
T ATCHT (AT T A= T,

AGT (AT @TaT, AT @l ATHAG [HTOTehT
JEAT AT ETIIeTFH fqaar afaeradrs 3fea
JaRA AT TR A=A T,

FoaATAE AT fAfase T faeaH T I g2
T|T-|',

FEIATS AT (epraret fauep fAEeTeRT qrerer
FFIAIH] @ TRl JUIHAT T AT dTares
[T, a3 | 1,

AT Foeaee Tl fadi g9 o 99 &4 94
Ffafed Faed ¥ MFHaREsdrs W@ T4 |
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Sifaw sgaedmu afufa

AT AT AT BTAATETRT AFEd SIEH I AT TST TH o |

R050/5q W WUHT 93F : 3

AT ¢ 3 HT 3

Wﬂﬁ?ﬁlﬁﬂﬁ'{ﬁ:

S e qafa Sawh HraareH

9Tares fAmfated a9

o Wif@H HATAYA YUTAT T AR
FTATFITHT ATTHA T,

o SIEHH HATGHA T AMHET T
TRATH! FHTEAT T,

o THIAIHT AN FTGH HFLIIT ¥
FTATFIT T ATHART ATSIAT TAR AT

A ACATAA

qEata aar e afafd

T=ATeA® FTATTA AT FTAATEIRT TTHET T a9 aied ATHT T59 THT B |

R050/5q W WUH 33F : 9

el 2 3 AT 3

yrafaew SeRETES:

Frafa qor <TtaeT atafa Sodadr wTIATEd Tdes

frefafed o

o FHIIAIRT FEATTHT Tgh! WITHEAHT FRTATAEEE]

EGNECIELRICS

AT gafdesdl A ITAH AT/ TTCH qAqT

Feafegd  ATgPREeATs ASeT AT ([odbebl

AT FIAAT MAAEs AR T/ FATHT SAHT

qELTF S T,

o FHEHIHT JHdes TAT FTTAT STAT IRTRT
/g FAREd T,

o FIAF FHET FA faemadE wer @/
THET T,

o FHIAIH FPATIAA ITABSH] THIET T |
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FUF FSA@FRH ACHAHERR faawor:
o to% s
THIYAR ARTA {57 950,000/~
ST HAR A5 950,000/ -
THIE HHIR b R¥0,000/-

AE: (&) @A GeTFE, L, T FIAATE JITIHIAE GATRIT T == GeaE I qd d=AIedFE o

HTHAT d3eF T T TH G7 |

(@) 2050 I qT 25 Td TIF FEIHH ATF FETTT FHIT GhT 338 & 30,000 (7 &5717) FT T7ed TIHTTT

el

ooTAd AMAT TAT A= AHITHRT TSHHT ToaTdbdl IIIfd T=arded FTAG qIT I ATATTHT qEAEEH!

Sufeafd HEER B

J@r afafaq | Sfew soEeam afta T
_

#] THYAR ARV [68  qhe % (% ")
A THE A=l RECIERS Y& W) 3 (3 AA) R HA)
ST T fas
RECIEED 3 (% W) 9 q HED)
BHIT TPT
T T gad RESIEED LR HA) 33 HA) 3 (R wE) 3 q wE)
A Fqeeg feerars RECIEED 3R ") QR A 9 (q wE)
AT YHIT FAR FTHT @A g AaE % (% ") R (R wE)
BIEEIEEa
A AT FAR TS EREeIre Al % (& HED)
grafta
Al AT 37, GF [ATATAFT FHqF G=TTF TIT ASFAT FIEIT ETHAT |
ATt faesoT THEA “ATIFRBT =S (COA)” AR THT G, T
Sy SUERNE S T e focirar qam o= i dHEes R T 91

Teh IS JUITAT [HTOT TRRT &, | FFAATRT T Fiafaer
AR THAT HEcAqu ATHEHT Wil & | @r qrafae
IMGF  FTIHT AR Gl FIAATErRl  TATFRIAT
T ggHl  IIEATR! R = qar fHatga seEr
AT AP0 JUTEATRl THTAHIATR TARTAAT
T 1Y TEE, | HEAAIH] T il o@Tehl TaR,
Fd, fAgwEdr, wfua difdee 9 abRaesw
FHTfaSE TRUHFT AT=ARE @l GfqagTdl ATATATH
GREERICE
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IS ¥ ST el @ SR THH AT grRar
faTor TdE | AHEET UF qad ATARE AT
Y B, Wgeg SiEw T fAaer #fewd, geErad
TRAT FFIT IR, AT, (e AR AdTes
T ATCH-HATSHAD] ARATEEE  ZR1 WAl Ta
TR B | AT AT IR RUesdTs (HATHT
T ATARE FEAEATAT SAGRT TN Mg | HEH
HIEEH] TETIRIETHEH] (ARG T TFB HIAATEIH
FAAER AT T oA AfAtqdT  afAfders
e |
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I FFGH qFEATIH

FEIATA T BIBI-HIAT HFAATH] [AGtT (G ATwT
SUH S Eedd Jumel (ERM) @] TReH 3
T FEAE Al aantae UHTgesgiRT  RUHT
Ofg =TT TeHAT HIhd HEEATIH s ATTH @, qTe
JrEdtas AMGH ek qar T Bl UIHE! qfg=r,
SR TRIRATATE AR T8 (a2dd HeaTgHH,
gfe=r RURT SfgWesd! TRATAAT T GIROTHET
T SifgHes®! [HafHa S FHET @ | SaHeb
ISP ATIRHT SAGHDT T Aled SATEaH TATH
P TALT T AATAIR T, ATTITRATHT  ATITRHT
&g FRATEN AM(S TQTSH T ATA(dh TTH] THeb
frags T atafaars SEeERr e ST FrdEs s, |
SIREH AT ATNT THATART ATITIA FiAfe=ra
T AT THT SRGH AFTIT AT TET MU
T, O WMGH AFGIOH  qERAT  Adraiaesed]
FTTHA e |

FEAH  AHIEedls  godATad  S@H  (RTART
T 9UTAE UIATES, HVHIE GEaes, gAmI, U,
AN AMlG) T AT SAMGH (ATRTH BTHI, Fgh AT
I AMTHTRT 9l TeThl I T oardhes qaT
ATIFRIEERT ) T Tl ATNT TAT FHT AT
TMRTE B |

foga SR Tege ¥ faaRwr AreAdr wEa R
AHAGFIRS FH AHAGRIR dTidd] TR THIAT
F T RUE g | aRASTAEIe aiTeET
ATHETHT WETEYY = HIAH TNCH 3, |

FIYAHRT AMfTET

HIAIHT AR Gigar (Code of Business Conduct)
FEOAA  ATFT  FAGEAE SHTRIRAT ¥ Afaw
HEERH] oo WIYSUSH (Y Gould= e, a1
THF! FAAIATS AIHT T FAA T IHEERT e
TS, | AT TG AR GledT (Code of Business
Conduct) @T% AT THT AN T &, TAA I
FHANEEATE IR T SHIRIRATHT A & T
gfva wem | afHad arfaw, gaeaeier fawuesdr
IR TATE T4 Hicieh rHTehl JUAAT, T AT adr
AT F FRATEIH] AN T U HFETT STAR
HledTeh qeaesd! Adeled TeTdls qrr=d Tee |
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TH G T FHAREEATS TEAR R U4, 04R
T R00R), FHRET FHT AT AT T HId I
gifde&st UF (FCPA), 932, T I& FTgeRl Tz, 3090
HTIH [Fgres THISTH SAThIT T JaHT AT
gfererer gar g |

faggenmft yem=w faQEt i (Global Anti-Bribery
Policy)

YT faeaaamdt st faRiEr Jifd (Global Anti-Bribery
Policy) & faeawresr fafq=r wxerar afasresdT
HIHAT & qTAAT T AIATEH! IR e, |
T el TLIAR (aTdT FTAAEwh! STARRI TIT T
HATTHAATHT & JedgaAewale F=d T&d Hgd [ASS |
YRl ARl [qUAAT BHI AT AR Figdre
AT qehalewed! AT afq ZATI@Tgd ATHaedl aRe
U FFER T Tl G | HFAI FAT-GHAAT EH
foRTdT TeaTgsha ¥ @1 IRIETUIh] FoaTdd e, STl
THY TAAAATR &R FqQrSH, FPATIad =R 9T
TASA ¥ =R [aRidT A ¥ Al srareen
R T HEd T |

FEAIC IRTERUT AT FUATAAT FAH TH qdT
AIATE AW ENMGd TH A&d JER B | HEIA
T TRHT FUARESH N == WUGUE (LR
TH T T Al AIEUEETATS MR W A YA
G | AR 3¢ ATTANIF [GgIdes T AATAETA
TF FId, TAH ¥ AU qEa AHT T A
TR, TAThRafear, ¥ qraeffarafa gfqagar @me
EXl

FEOAATS WM RN GOUEA ¥ Afcehdre
HTIGUEES ZIRT (GGl TRURT B | HFAIT ATHT
JUITATeRl THTET Tl qrReefiar ¥ Sarhaledrer &
FAIMET FATTH ARATHES B T A= T8 |

IT-FEFR Toae® qAqT Aqfhaigedt AT Afaw
IR Glgan qun fagrage

FATARESHl AT AFAT ATFR Ffegdr (Code of
Business Conduct for Non-Employee Directors) Gl
fasaer! ArefHedrars JrafAearET e |
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FHT ATIARdl Al ATEANAE AER "edl  FRISAEs 3 ATAGEEed] AAETITAE AT ATeaRdd
(Supplier Code of Business Conduct) ¥ ‘ch’lrﬁ'rr fraes g Ew | ifae qar fefses ?«:gf EEkel
ARiA<eTd fagries’ (Supplier Guiding Principles) o afirerges qHTAY TRTHT T ANdd HRTATAE S b
A qHhAEed ATHRA FIAT FHA G Tde, (o1 afg AL T IR ATFE] FTeaMaaars T

A faugeer T Mgy dAfquraes MR TRt 9RE @ | I Afad A SRS ¥ dtqeaeedrs

Bl TUGRY H ATAYR WU ATT (retention period)

FTE GWLOT i (Document Retention Policy) N . (custody) ) AR
EHERIEES

FAT BT G A AN TWH @, AT

qIERTT T HAAT

I TS UHTSrdrad FEITd ATANAT Thl Ioobtd AT b GIqaad (BPA) 033 HTIFHHB IATET &TT
ST AT FFIATATS IS AP GITAGART AT FIE Taehed FHATIAT TTXehl B | ATTHF T 309%-50 &I
TN F FITIETHT Ioobte T, faeqd ST ¥ TRERTATRT AN HFIAIaTs Ith b T&T TRTH & |

= - 7 o
= = = e b LT
A, TR s TR

NATIONAL BPA AWARD CEREMO

, § Shegwan 2081 (July 20,20
w * Hobel, Eothmandy

o

35 NEPAL LIM

7o
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TR femuaeg gratawar 67 guw s
T BT e FTETHT [GHIIATaTs Hegal Ted SR SOYETAl FEATHT TTHT qocd TEeHT &, Tael

ETHT Hed FATHl 8¢F TeTeATs G AT T Jooiad] AT AT T JATH Taeg | THT AThITgeh! ATHTHAT
ferar afed T IRIIHT FHIE YSE T q9T Sl AR @REATS SITHIEHI0 97 U (&9 qaieaeardrs
farstT T4 & TTTS] | A TET BTHT ATATAA ATATARIHT AT FERATS ATH T4 | s, T
o a9« el fava, eTHr GHEdeEs, ETHl FHERIEE, &l SUHRhT I Ml SATIRE AT¥haResh!
JATAATE SATTHT Ied BTH FATETT RTEPT THT AT FRRIHE THATAR! [T T |

ETHT qUTTAT 35 AT 9ET GHASH ACRT T | TTesh T THETT Hiwad AT T4 ARTHeE I ATHITTE FTAT
IETAT g T HaATIeTE I TATSTHT BT FATERA S | faiamresr yred qiead e g5 Tewesh! dqaearH
AT A 0%¥Y FF SF-4A Tiqagar (Net-Zero Commitment) TR B | ETHIA BTHT [SHTEMISHET
ToiveTens TRRarEr At fauer g T e favaerdt R SR TSUeTeTE JeTRl daedehdr dqed

ATafHe STATCHT G | TG (il &7, TRPR T TW-ATRHAF GEATETes Tharag T TI7d qRFRaATS (&l

[T qedes Il T4 Fedil s |

AT et JaHT IO Adea
Afger i TeTeh ot

AfEATRT FATAAT T FITH BT IT T&T FHTSTHT AT
THT FTe qT SATTeF JHTUEE S | I, FPTehT-shTATH]
TEH HGATESHT AT Hed [T THI=H ATdr
T | 209 3f@, T STAR-Shopkeeper Training and
Retailers ( fersar qfteror 7 @ fashdr ) T q&r| ST
FIHTHIT TH FAHAES gourerd T8 ATTH & |
TH FY BT ETHT o HSEATHT Tedl Q0% W=l
FET Al fashdrens Fednl RIS IRIEAT yare TaT |
RE GRTE FARA (Accelerator Training Program)
AR FoANAd T FRTAT qYer =T HeAaTar

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED

Frfea 4T |

FeH ATS A 0IR AT AigAT AHIEI FAFHHAEB!
HEaqUul AT TIHT (AT TS fadr | A1 aY
ITHEER qHAT J(ghT AN Tk Horgd H=A &l
T faepradrs grcdred Al AT R T 9a@

MEG | TG BIAFAA AUTAFT R0 &l Tal [TedTg&HT

120

THE Tl G | A Aigdl ITHETHT JARLAATR!
A, Alg T drcdred ¥ T4 Al IoaTadTs
SATAAT TEHN B | eTHIA THIeRe? FIAhAE! 290
TETeTE 9fT ST IRt SEHr 93 et faw 7 ofi
3 fasrar afasmTEsdrs ST SrEarT IR T
AT JeheATs $.900,000 YT TRTHT 4T |
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FTHI AT TR TEHERATE T QAT e
9T ETHT 9T 9RTYHT Uk IHE ATHAT ORI gTHIe
ETHI FTFIHT TART THT &k ARl TGATHT aTHT
QSR T AT FIqagal ST & | I e
LTI FATHH] Ueh (LTl FTHT ETHIA T TTLehl
EY AT ATNT @S R AT9T ATl TSRO T
ATT T TANTHT AT AT AT TATAEEATS q1T

ST TEET B |

BT 99 AT Fel TATTHT ETHT IRATTAES qoaTaATH T
B | TTAT BTGl 99 GRATST fordadepr Ao
HIed AT 3500 el Fal faandiessd @i RWH
¥ GWR ¥IT9HT I Splash FATAGTH ATHHATLI, TS
UTHAT CIUD FT AR R ITHIT =[eal8% i, T
HSTAh! TAHIT FHTALT T8 G |

FTATS] TEHLT: AFIITRT TAEATIAT, HAART TAHTIT
9TEST UTHTehT SIGal WIS SATAT IET hIhl-hIel THISTE HTeTel
HIT ®IR TEEIES qF SHATH (CIUD) ¥ ATeX TS AT (WAN) &I

ATHETAT TS THAT T IR (recharge) Tl TRAIAH
FEATEIT TAT | gXqTIRIT HRIE FISHATST HeTARUTIAHIR FTHAR,
AT SHTeAep] JuTeafd T HEANTAT FE@FT~ AT |

IRATSATRT H&T S¢9d o &1 Akl wWRals HIIH qe] (937 |
T AT el Aol T Alchee | I8 ARATSTAT qiTsT
T faaTacy SAEwd! o TXATS FAH AT /1T Jed I /7T

TRTR T |

AU WA ThA: AR THIR TFF TEW T
FIRT-IEAT TS TITA T T (Splash) THTAATHRT
FY<h YETHl [Aadaael AR HISd HIeATHS [a=reaa T
FUTH! B HIHAT T AT AT AT HHI,
W ST 9T Y= T T TRl FaE FHAT AA{
T A& AMEUHT B 19 GRASTHHET R 927 UF ftheay
JUITETel FATIAT T R Fl daa 9o a9 ¥ ¥ el
Il WITESHT I & aaT Bubbler Faucet taps AT
S 9T STafd FHTET B |

T yurTetTe faendies ¥ faameue geeres afed ¥,000
T2T TEl HAacTs aTq TATSAe, | IR Fu7
TRl G IRY [ARET  TTHET AT FuieRr TR
qUSRUT TATEHH!  [AH 9 TRl B T
TG | T IRATSAETR G qufad aeartad T
.9 (recharge) 1 HTAT AT FTHT §5,00,000 fdax
g9 |
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Mg AT GEedhl AT SAA=EdAT Ui aarsHE, 9T AT IRURT
T S G TEAR T IRl TAAT HZEATR FRI IA g
AT IR AT ST ATE9TF @ | I TRASTAT aTfes &9
#fqfeeh 30,000 fweifeer 90 qHT ATHTHT TOART Hgd T A9eT
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NN

RER AT fawa: gmt gfa weees FTfarer T ATRT T FTFHAT fafae yanT awamdr
TEAEE (AUl @, THHI TRAT (309Y¥), AATSFR
ArdT (R09%), RhE g TETEHT (0%0), WEgAT ArdT
(R033), AT FAH-AT ATATT (R09%-30%3) T Id-
fags AT AT 9% (R0IY) FAEL B | BT BTHIA
T=ATAT TH FAHHEE TAIHR S

FH 095 HI FIH-FATA (99T YU ed FqR"
T AT, ST d&d 030 FFEAHAT TR IaTaA
TMNTHT T alael T RATAEEH] aRETh] HEAT GbeT T
TATANT T &1 | THehT [qeaeardr giaehrore! THETA
TATAHT BIHT-HIATA “ GO e HURF ALAEE

TET (STAATIAHRT TAT ATATALUT) FAHHART TgA
dread FaTd fafaded dgd BT RS HaT SHATHT
(CIUD) & ATHETETHT FTSHTST HETANRITIARTR Sareaferr
FTSHTSTHT ATk THE TSI 47T T8 ATHRTIe fqareraraT
AT (SATATATHT T ATATERY) HIAHA G TAT [BAHHDT
qEaTd  FTSHTST  HETAVRAAH], STeT AT ATANT T
faameraeT =TI aretie yiaiafagssr Iufegfaar us
URIFTE AT AR TRUS 94T | BABA RIS
FISHATS! HETARITARIZRT ARHNT [aareraes (S Afed
Al FIAHT KMC &% ATAedHdl SH) &1 aiT  Jieeeddr
T 2 |

T IRATAATH I¢4T TEAFET ATkl 99 ATH JaTT I T
faamdfewars araravim faus T feramess & awar
afg T & | AFH RRER AT TEETHR, T GIART,
TA-ANTHT q1g, BIERATT FeAl (o1, T F=T G Mataraes
THTALT G [FEHHAT 9T Il FAL0T T 3 RER
AT (WASH) &1 gediegd  [quaesdr  wfafatags
FHEL FreA |
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AT ;. JARTHATEN €A T T:TAN .0 TATTAHRT HTma<ar

“BTHT HISHTS! T FaaaddT ®leR fgarsT=er Aecaary Taaal darsd deddT 99 PET 95d9 S (g18% JTdHT
@ | wfeorar BT 95 SeeiaT ARGHHHT G T PET Sldaes del TANT TR T Hifed 399 $Ie HUH! TTTeeH]
g9 ¥ SEIET TOHEIGE FTAT e AL QR G |

Waste Segregation bin at Le
Sherpa Farmers’ Market

Jamchen Vijaya Stupa, Budhanilkantha

BOTTLERS NEPAL (TERAI) LIMITED 123 ANNUAL REPORT 2080-81



g PRI Tt THIIERATE QAW TOT T4

THITIHT AT

gl @red, frem ¥ @WT feder AT qHEEHT
TS eeear fewsl | eTEer BTEr SRR
QUETIET AT wifge @ Rty gfaf=ra wer &),
JgETH URHT TATIR FATH BTH RGP & | T
e aerer faamasr faendiessr et afures
ST HEATTATS ST TEHT & | BT CSR AT TRTHT
e AT AT faaTer fewedt fAgem@mr & | e
FTATARVTHT U+ THATIATS FH T HTT 795 &THI FTarard
T AHETIEEH! ATAIE HedT0 T THT SHaebars
QATAT qfT T T | @ CNN quReRT fre
QU7 SEAH ECDC TeXTATS BIH AT [helR I[EHAT
TAETT T ATTHT 400 AT TET JATATE IHTEEeh]
Ioodd AiaSH Greded T9 JMUETh @l 9ednT
qi TR T |

ECDC @ WA~ [ T8

)

T R0} HT CCBN
T AYTA AR TR
LT FTIFHHFT AN
FEART T yfdqagar
ST | 4T AHET CNN
2012 @ AMAFT fAE IO S dR AT T8
ECDC T ATHaNHAT TRTH {937 | q 033 &
FHT, ETHIG AIAHRET & [hIR [Eeedl ,300
FATHT ATTHT [FARATE A9 AT BT6T Ffqagar
R T THA TTH G |
W WUSTI I
fqeTaT erafead Had
USRI ITeHT HEANTH
areel TRH B Th
FEETE T FHAAR
AINT ATeSAAe TR
FTH TEG | ETHT FEIRT
HET FOHT Tebebl FIET
T BRATATAT Birgd & STEHT ATAT AT Tg= a3
T AR o Fiard |

At feaasr I

afger feaq 0¥ AfgdT T ARIHR TLT (Women
for Human Rights Facility) ®T HHTSAT, @l d<Ad®
T faelT araTer Ut ? fagar Afearessd! Afaedre
TAINT A TIT IAGEHNT & HITE [avgehl FeaTeh
W ATHAT  AdHdee  dil
MBI FOE

==

‘o A X = =
HATITITAT AfEATATS GITh TAT3S ARTHT 99 “HAS
ToATATHAT SATIT AMNTURT FIH MRF I IcqadTs
qfy AerdTeT |1 HATAT |

At Eareey faata®

BT BT ¥ HEIWG |THISS  Iavarnacd
(CSR) T ATfehaT faears T | 79 g dar T
THSTIEEHT THRICHE JATT fOeiAr T qag | el
e FEINTT AT SARETTcaehl Teees Hel Jelehl
AT FATET e ge giafived AT #ied ©

ey, ]

.
5 7 R § B
k ! .-n l.

Fead 9T (A7) fafade (BNTL) & BNTL TREHT
ANGHT TIHT A8 sdls HIgE e [FiF
YSTH Te ATURT B | AT foafes, ger 9| Aigaee

7 93 AThesdls WIgal YATSe ATavdd fafwan
AT T W = G T | STHel e JardT
ARG 98 FIUH Afhesdls AEAF AT I T
AAR=T TS | TIIT FHAR ! feqelrg grafepar
f&s, el u# e T 99 afadr aHerae faweE
TR & |




It AOAT WA T T fqaeoT I@a

gieTs B B (6 frem uw difad afuer T
ATATNAE IRATAHT AT T TRl FTHT &l |
T ILYHT ATNT BTHI ATHRNAF (T2 d T AATT T
foamdfems s avar Aaaw= ¥ 9 faaRer TE) | A
Tede URAREEH AMIF AHATE HH T AT A9
AAAAREeATs AT RTATHT 907 FGHT ART ol
AT Hdes qHAREd 9 T | Fifasr
FET ¥ qRadTERT el IIAATS FagT T AT
faandieears TR T ETHIC BTHI ETHT ATHETIH!
iy e TG |

e o
fea (ar
faas)  Raq
THETAHT TATSTHT
frar | MdaHr
THIWETAE 9%
ATHT THEEE
ITEYU THRIEHT 9T T STAT qrfes a1 AT
gfeafirar T ue Sira= feer dre @wraer fag

ar 1
i |

THRAATE ETHT FedRTeT T faerar e faeprer afafagrr aeataa

HHIAATE FHT AcTed ATaThdl T
Iufeda @EHt

AR HFIHRT argHT faug aggam
plehl-chleA] THISY BRI EIFEES N EE I
fa=l” (Say We Care) @fHaTe s=aiid, CCBN
o STSRPIEH JHFT GATad &THT Y00
FaT uTd T Yo FI IUe YW AT, ThA
Y0,000-%0,000 fheddlg dchldd ITEd
IqeAed RIS FEdNT TAT | A& ATHAT
S G BRARAREEHT [aa=ordT FednT
AT | THETE, TFFIRT AT a7 TSP
CDO T 9,000 & fohrel ITHT FrFTEAT |

BHR ST #. % & 93 Afthese T
aﬁ_ﬁ c




... FHATLEE
FHT fah@ AeAEEAE qrd T afeE S @ | (74T T FHATLZERT TLEAUT T qTATUTHUT:

SRR H: &, ¥ 09 e . FHHART ATIRT T . ¥%
. YRIET THT: 3,305 GRTLOT B AT
IAE &THATRE AR ATHINEE
AL JAEHAT T A Iehdal qIfera e A fasi
THR, W T JTRT: & Y URE o .« QYO A FE [aRFE®
JeATE @re: 3 . 4,00,000 9T TG GG fThares
e R - WEE ATfahdreTe ATHUS @i
gfqera: 9% (F e ATEH)
gfafer T qefiear wEH TS
aferay fefem wata T afewt smaee @ g CSR ¥ f&ium wgwee wda
AT SRR Al A A V7 e qufwwor O
T &R Y o O O gfe 99 W=RT SEr afREreTEr
EEIEE]
HIHHEE T &HATET . Hfedr FOTheIT: 9,033+
o oIy ¥ fqepradr Tl . 3955, %93/ @ gHT Decarbonization T+ET:

. giea ST ITAET: Yo%
« FHET IS FHL 033 FI JAATHT
(929.93) Co2e-MT FHHI
Il &R T s s
FHT TRTCTHF THET T AT Afershed
FAHFEAHT THE
. ML FHAAT AW (3050/089)
gg T LYY o

= -
YAl IoaaH ITANTA AMHIHATE Iod
yfawa fovo
o HqEad : +9%

e HA ATERTAT AT +99%
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T=aTAh qlaaed

.. R0%o/R05q F ATRT

AT T FEAATETET,

ETHY =7 oMMfdeh a9 059 TTeT ATATE 3 ATHH! ToaTedeh Giaaa J&d T ISaT Icaled & | A9, 050/59
ATS eb? 84 AT, BT AYTerAT ST Teehl ATh AwSres qaddl ¥ Ggebederl THUET qTd JIaAT T e
Ferel | a9 Gidaader erul faxiia ggel, eteT IRUTHeHT Jo9Ta qT aTed FRFew, T AT FAACIY THAEEHT
ANITAELTT T ATRT &6 0TI TATHes ! [qavor g 163 |

qqATTRT FreAh
fa<fa gevi=

ATA. R050/5q HI THIET TG FFIATR FoATAqdE I AR 5. 5999 IS Tedhl & | AT afefedicer
PR TSR [hTHT ATTRT RRTACHT AT FFIAIT 5. ¥¥ .5 FRASH T ATThl GF 19 TeH S |

(F. T AM@H)
feaon R050/59 R09% /5o
FATAATE ATRTAT AL ?,3%0
g ATH 299 3,380
F ATeTH FHA ATRT ¥¥g Ry
FX AfSHN FHA AR 3¥0 w3
9 SATHHTIRT AT foeirar foarorens od gfaeeder g Jov= TRuwr 3 |

Il ARRTHS [airg IROTH H&d TIHT ETHT goaradesdl 9979 ai fald= deaq Ademeig T ArAfsTe-TsTHlidd

HITIeTATE Jod~ JUHT 2l |

qRY hIThgr

.  HeUdfgHl qaE: oAl qad T Foered bl WH 18 WUbIA HE Wbl Farere brIarehl faxra feeawarr
GAA AT Gl g~ AU 93T |
oo

R W-UHIT® aamE: I8 &HT J-ISH11de ATERard aTHl A 99 AMR=adr ¥ SiaHes args @)
ATIf @A faeed ¥ SR Aqeed! IaRaedd THE IcATaH ATHUIER! ITASIdT T ARTAAT AT T
B, O a9l fadrT Hearsdrs 99 Siad aATCH G |

3. g SR AT SHeifersad afer e, S eTH JUNERRT AR B UF THE @USHl giatfae Tes,
ETHT SAAIHAT (el I qHT B | AT AU eTHl IITHeE asAT NRTae ATUH! , eTHl [ehl TaTueh!
B | Y TS qET T G | AqdTek, JATeEH JTHET FIfaAr 9iq qfeady AUl B | aebieqs 9
TRTIEEF] AGAT ITAIATA U HFAH] HAAAATS AT TH B |
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HTANE FLHEE

A ATF TTAT FFIATT ARAAT ¥ q@ UC H TRAAIdH AT Thl B, STl HIIH dLgAT ¥ Freaeraet
qig TWH G | T, AT ATMYF qUAT ARAATE (HATTR ARTHT FH ATH G TAA ATHNAT T51ed T2Thl G | AT
FATCE®HT ATaTE, aTHI BTHT HIEAEE AAEe T T TA7 (G qaaves o giaeag & |

FATHEGRT ATAAT

AT FATAEEATE FTHAT THHT AN ETHT &THT SAahTIes qA=Aiiad T T AfaTel el AT SThars €
FATSHHN AN IR IATAEE AR T Fiqag & |

q Tt R e we aEs: aiEadaeiie SUNRT FFeR ¥ goR Aiaeiiedrdrs sarar e, grhe anide v
095 /9% AT A=A:AeF AGH FRI T g TAEATE HH 9 WHIGH ST R fdaX A6 AThRE=
YA TR G | BTHI fafa=T ST FaTRe® TR T ETHT STATaT Tk AThRE® (aiadieer T g | 4T
IO =T AT STl fafae ATaeddaess W T4, eTHl IATET TSR0 J@Tgd ¥ auii Y9l qar

T fegetge TRTH A |

2. oy fufe o aew fawam: el femr =ameeEr ®ed TR T A gig afaars g sitaa T ey i fe
TF WSS [TedR AThd FTHHIES Wl TR BTHT SATdIh SraTaa=ers qradr (o Sl e @)l

3. SIUTST FEFaUA: AEANTE FATAITHR GaTAT, FEAT 86 ¥ WThe®, 4k [ahdles qeux, Hlhd]
UTHT TARER TALT T &THI &THATATS TR &THI [0 F=ATeedls Jed@nrd ®TAT (&R Tl @) AT
fae® @R fafdg o[ed AT qaR ¥ fal I I¥ard A/ 97 a0l gRT e 2l AT FaTEes aeiy 98
grefe ¥ o=l e dig T Seed 2l

¥, Sl sfEen IJeaedar: A7 a9, BTH fesiaare wrd SAIeAT = TR &)1 Il Araeedls AreHTS ST TH
B, ST U G Jol@Ad BYH] HHT T @ T ANTA-S8Td] TeTUhl @ 99 &I, & &l
At ® qRAAEESH] ATTE AT, IHATATS AT T T THT ICAEHE deTSH THAT AR TLHT
Bl AT TedeERl VT A AN FASH T FFIACTS (&7 qR=mas Jeebtedm ¥ faxira Tnfacasr | wam=
fag 211

Y. FOMUEY AEHESEA: FFIAA STHl (AT HAaad] TAEEal dergadl Higd AU 0HIdH Fraaho
AIATTH B BT AAEIT Ade® FART W ¥ TR IRF FTR(qars derdl [qUz, aTHl 5H aARTdes
frar 1% IcaEwa GereT AT el A TEAEw BTHl Al Hiqel ¥ ESHTge Aders U HAREE
W T FOH B Tl Gr=d T fesire TIRuHT &1, J97 qR=rad Iehtedl ¥ ANTd Taedradqqia amal

o c X
Jiqegdrers gge qral

% YUTIAH GG FFIAT AT, TN aTdies AThd HTEhIaH! FaTadrs Haardad aeTdd Tl
HETERITAd! IRIETE Fhdes dead TR, FFAT ATY(qhdeEd ] AATaydd Foal ATad dT giaes
AT T AT R AT AT AR 3RS HEIERIaR I T FHIC] AT FEETATs A1 ariEs
FH HeIewdT R T FTarq faam

v, fefStea TamaRoT: FFEC 9 09 g fefSiad FUTIRUM! ATATHT JaeT Tl B T AFIE FHFIA [Shfed
FTTRUTAT TAT AT TR G | FHIET TRUHT TUAT FHFIA (TF [SfeTae TR0 qRATSTATAT AT T B, -
o TSI EWATHT q1g: ETHT ETHT ToaTaaTs qesl aATs AT fforae ST ¥ qrafear =T Taay |

ATY(T AT FAEATIH, HUSRYT (=0, T YThaT STHATHT R 9 FA1ad ¥ TTEF (STeT) faeeoore
TART e | STHHT DMS (fa¥er sqa=aras quell) ¥ SFA (farshl ofet @=iiel=l) & q=ra T 4 |
T, FEAT (AT & FTAe%ehl TEaredh AT FHHAT Adlide GhaT Eared ehHeATE ATHIIH
B | AT AR AT ghg T, TRAAT AU TH, T AT FHANATS ATdh I0AIAH T qedardd
nfafafaesar e Sivgd THHr AT T T0HIaE HaHE [T Bl |
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o ¢B2B fefiea fawar: srafedr ITHRAT EERAT AqHATT ATIAHT AN BTHI BTHT AT IJTEATTATS
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qr i o T |

FSIHTUH] I (Route to Market) TFI=AT IUMITAe%dTs U3¢ 91, TAT WTH J&1d ¥ Hoiies faedr T, Irea
g TAEHNT TIA] FFLATIT T, T WA AR THEIaEl ITANATATE AR T AT Haeed sl
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Corporate Information

COMPANY NAME:
Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 98818

LEGAL FORM:
Listed Public Company

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING:
Nepal Stock Exchange as "BNT"

REGISTERED ADDRESS:

Balaju Industrial District, Balaju, Kathmandu, Nepal

INDUSTRY ADDRESS:
Gondrang, Bharatpur

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:
Mr. Deepak Senthil Nath Gunalan

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
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Mr. Lukas Zapletal- Director
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COMPANY SECRETARY:
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M/s PKF T.R. Upadhya & Co. Chartered Accountants
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